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ERIE COUNTY GAMING REVENUE AUTHORITY

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Erie Zoo Adventure Center
423 West 38" Street, Erie, PA 16508
September 14, 2017 — 8:30am
AGENDA
1. CALL TO ORDER
2. ROLLCALL
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - August 2017
5. COMMENTS BY CHAIRMAN
6. PUBLIC COMMENT
7. PRESENTATIONS
8. COMMITTEE REPORTS
Treasurer’s Report
Regional Assets Committee
Strategic Planning Committee

Update from County Council
Update from County Executive’s Office

o0 o

9. REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
10. SOLICITOR’S REPORT

11. OLD BUSINESS
a. Addition of new expense category — Online Grant Management System (Foundant)

12. NEW BUSINESS
a. Resolution No. 10, 2017 — Resolution to enter into agreements with twenty (20)
Erie County Community Assets in the arts, culture, entertainment, heritage &
recreation-based nonprofit sector
b. Resolution No. 11, 2017 — Resolution to accept the 2016-17 audited financial
statements

13. ADJOURNMENT
Next Regularly Scheduled Finance and Board Meeting of ECGRA

Date: Thursday, October 12, 2017
Time: Finance Meeting: 8:00 a.m.; Board Meeting 8:30 a.m.
Location: 5240 Knowledge Parkway, Erie, PA 16510
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Erie County Gaming Revenue Authorit

Minutes of the Board of Directors’ Meeting
August 10, 2017

CALL TO ORDER

The Board of Directors’ Meeting of the Erie County Gaming Revenue Authority was held on
August 10, 2017 at 5240 Knowledge Parkway; Erie, PA 16510. Legal Notice of the meeting was given
through an advertisement appearing in the Erie Times-News. The meeting was called to order by the
Chair.

Mr. Sample: | want to begin by saying that we are very sorry to learn of the passing of Dr.
Garvey; a true gentleman and advocate for Erie, whose wisdom will be greatly missed.

Mr. Wood: Erie lost one of its greatest champions yesterday. | doubt in my lifetime | will ever
meet someone who parallels his commitment to civic affairs, his passion for this community, and
someone who is so kind in spirit and generous with his resources. The man was my mentor, my
advisor, and close friend. Rest in peace, Dr. William Garvey.

Let's have a moment of silence, please.

ROLL CALL

Mr. Bagnoni (via phone), Mr. Barney, Mr. Domino, Mr. Paris, Mr. Peters, Mr. Sample, and Mr.
Yaple. Mr. Breneman (via phone), Mr. Lee, Mr. Wachter, and Mr. Wood are also present.

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

Mr. Peters makes a motion to approve the agenda. Mr. Yaple seconds the motion. Motion
carries 7-0.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES - July 2017

Mr. Paris makes a motion to approve the minutes. Mr. Yaple seconds the motion. Motion
carries 7-0.

COMMENTS BY THE CHAIR

Mr. Sample: Obviously, we are all saddened by the loss of Dr. Garvey; as Perry said, a true
champion for the City of Erie.

We're still fighting the battie. It's getting interesting. | know that Perry has been giving a lot of
information to those that ask. | don't know that | would ever say that we're trying to prove our case,



but we're trying to justify our position; why we've done everything the way we have. | would challenge
any Authority to go under the level of scrutiny that we have.

Unfortunately, we experienced some budget cuts; | think those things are going to come back
later to haunt all of us; especially the Special Projects that had given us some lateral mobility to be
able to react for funding of things that were of an important nature, with a level of urgency. But we
shall persevere. We thank you all for being here.

PUBLIC COMMENT

No public comment.

PRESENTATIONS

a. MaherDuessel, CPA; Jeff Kent and TJ Gustafson — Draft Audit
b. Millcreek School District Foundation; Kris Huber and Kyle Bucholiz — STEAM Program

a. MaherDuessel, CPA

Mr. Kent: Thank you for having us. We are here to give you a brief overview of the audit.

This is our first year performing the audit for the Authority so we are certainly happy to be here to
discuss the results and meet you all.

There is a packet in front of you that has a power point handout and behind that are all of the
draft documents. For the purpose of the meeting, | will be sticking to the handout but if you have any
questions today or after today as you read through the drafts, we are certainly available for any
questions.

Page two of the handout talks about the reports that are issued as a part of this process, the
financial statements themselves. We issue a communication of the charge of governance letter that
just goes through standard communications that we are required to give to you as a Board. Then we
have a management letter that just goes through a few recommendations that we have.

The next couple pages, three and four, go through the topics of communication of the charge
of governance letter. The first part of the letter talks about responsibility; it is our responsibility to
provide an opinion on the financial statements in terms of whether they are fairly stated. It talks about
the fact that the financial statements themselves, along with the related internal control processes, are
the responsibility of the Authority.

In terms of the timing of the audit, we did the main field work in early July, and for the last
couple of weeks we've had some reporting discussions and gone through some draft reports. So,
now here we are today with a better than rough draft of the financial statements so we can start the
finalization process from here.

The letter points out that your accounting policies are described in your footnotes. There are a
couple of significant estimates and significant exposures that are noted in the letter; I'll hit those as we
go through the rest of the presentation so we cover those topics.

The rest of the items, mainly on page four, are kind of exception-based that there were
significant issues that we had for the audit process, whether disagreements or major internal control
issues. We would highlight them in this letter but there really is nothing to report. We were able to get
everything we needed to complete our procedures and we certainly thank Perry and Tammi for their
help during the audit process.

Page five is a summary of results; this is our opinion on the financial statements. We are
prepared to issue an unmodified opinion that you want from us. Pages six and seven - just some
summary financial information. Page six would be the summary statement in that position. You
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ended the year with $15.4M in net position which is classified as Restricted. That is actually a change
from past years where your net position was classified as Unrestricted; we talked through that
classification with Perry because there is kind of an external restriction attached to your funds it was
more appropriate to show that in Restricted. Most of the $15.4M is cash; about $1.8M in net Notes
Receivable. One thing to note on the Notes Receivable, the gross Notes Receivable are about
$2.3M; through discussions with Chuck and Perry this year it was determined that it would make
sense to report a reserve against those gross notes so there was an allowance or provision from
collectibles reported of about $460,000 that is being recognized in this year’s financial statements.

Mr. Peters: Jeff, Perry, and | spent quite a bit of time discussing that we need to report
accurately on our financial position. Without getting into details as to which particular loans that we
have made that show some kind of risk, it's probably not hard to deduce which loans we have made
that we suspect might have some risk based on the performance of the Economic Development
Corporation here and some of their sub-entities. | think that's a prudent approach to this; we don't
have any particular information for this other than our communication with those that we've loaned
money to. Some of that communication you all participated in about a month ago, when one of our
borrowers asked for a restructuring of their debt; that's enough to probably give us a good indication
that something is going on there with their finances.

Jeff, Perry, and | discussed this quite a bit; | don't think it was our goal to call out or embarrass
any of our borrowers at this time. If anyone wants to discuss in further detail or feels as though
they're not quite catching what I'm saying about which organizations might be at risk, I'm glad to
discuss it but | think for purposes of the audit, having some general allowances related to what might
be uncollectable makes some sense.

Mr. Wood: | think it's important to note that an allowance is not a write-off; it's not an
anticipation of a write-off. It's an effort to accurately reflect the financial position and risk involved; so,
it's not a submission that there is going to be a write-off necessarily, just an accurate description of
where we're currently at. We've never done it before; Jeff brought it up. Our auditors in the past
never recommended that we do it. | had a conversation with Sue Ellen at the County's finance
department about it and she said, “You have to look at your historical trends in order to determine
what your allowance should be.” We've never had a loan go bad in our very short existence of
making loans; so, there is no real historical trend. We had to have that conversation with the auditors
and come up with some objective process to do that. That's how we came up with that percentage,
which equates to roughly 20%.

Mr. Peters: And to be clear, we believe it to be one of the entities that we've loaned money to
that is in financial distress. Maybe | should just state who it is. As you recall, the Enterprise
Development Fund came to us about a month or two ago and said, “Hey, we're having trouble. Can
you restructure our debt to make this a little easier on us?” We all said that we're eighteen months
away at that point, and we have other things on our agenda right now; your loan stands as your loan
stands. Finance and Strategic Planning can address that as it comes. You will recall that at that
meeting, they indicated to us that their lines of credit were cut off.

I do want to take a moment to also mention that they have, as you recall, asked us for an
additional $500,000. You may also recall that when we allocated $500,000 to them right before the
GEIDC bankruptcy, we had several elected officials in the community that were quite upset with us
that we didn't give them more. | think that this Board is to be commended for their restraint and their
understanding that this position could be much worse for the taxpayers of Erie County had we listened
to those elected officials that sat here and told us, “Give them more money.” | have to say
compliments to all of you that took a challenging decision and stuck to your guns because this could
have been worse.

We don't know how this ends. They are working through their issues and we think they've got
some governance issues that they're going to try and clean up. But | wanted to be clear because |
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saw some looks at the other end of the table that seemed unclear as to who | was talking about. |
don’t think we need to call them out here; there is no requirement to call them out and embarrass
them. Is it fair to put it that way, Jeff?

Mr. Kent: Yes. The way the footnotes are structured it reads that there is an allowance on the
overall Notes Receivable; it's not described as related to a specific loan. There is a more detailed
note that talks about the individual loan and there is some discussion about uncertainties surrounding
that specific loan. The overall allowance in the financial statements is not directed at a specific loan.

Mr. Wachter: If | may, Mr. Peters and Mr. President, the Notes Receivable note related to the
Fund says to the extent that we talked about some uncertainty says that, “during 2017, the Fund
requested consideration of forgiveness of its Notes Payable, which the Authority is currently
deliberating. Additionally, the Autherity was notified in 2016 that an entity related to the Fund, the
GEIDC, filed Chapter 7. The Authority has considered the uncertainty surrounding the ultimate
collectability of the loans in its determination of the overall allowance for uncollectable notes. The
Authority, staff, and Board will continue to consider the ongoing viability of the Fund.”

That's an extremely unemotional, fact-based note. Mr. Peters, | agree with you that it's not
calling anybody out; it's just what it is. This is an audit, and that's what you're supposed to do.

Mr. Kent: Those are all very good points. Any further questions on that topic? Page seven is
a summary income statement or statement of activity; certainly, the most of your activity is the gaming
revenue and the grants supported. You can see the Provision on Notes line; that's what we were
talking about the $460,000 of net allowance. Again, page seven is kind of the results for the year.

Page eight, we talked about a few of the things — these were kind of through the draft process
— some of the reporting discussion items that we thought would make sense to share with you. We
talked about the first two; the third bullet: ECF enhanced disclosures. Perry and | had gone through
the question of the reporting presentation in terms of the funds that are held with the Community
Foundation so we thought it necessary to beef-up and enhance the disclosures related to those funds.
So, the footnotes have a lot more information than you've seen in the past relating to those funds. it
discloses the fact that there are two funds, it describes the two funds and the activities for the year,
the balances between the two funds that they are of market value at the end of the fiscal year of about
$12.8M. That's all provided in the footnotes. Those are some of the changes from last year.

Then the last item, you have the draft in front of you, footnote nine is just kind of a placeholder
right now. It's highlighted but there is some discussion about adding some language relating to the
legislative uncertainty. Perry has been working on the wording that is going into that.

Mr. Wood: Clearly, our revenue stream is tied to one source and that is the Pennsylvania
Horserace Gaming Act with the local share provision, as it is currently structured, being maintained by
the Legislature in the future. So, the contingency would speak fo the fact that local share gaming, the
clause, has been declared unconstitutional; it has not yet been fixed by the end of this fiscal period
being the end of March 2017, it hasn't been fixed by the Legislature and therefore it is a potential
liability to future revenue coming into ECGRA. The idea with the contingency would be to recognize
that potential threat.

Mr. Kent: The next page is the last report we want to taik about; the management letter that
goes through some recommendations. Again, there were no findings; no what would be termed as
significant insufficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control that we have to report. The
management letter goes through some other matters that we're offering for your consideration.

The first comment in the letter talks about segregation of duties. Certainly, with your small
staff size duties aren't completely segregated; you have one person that is able to do all of the
processing and all that goes with that. First of all, you want to be aware of that but then you want to,
where at all possible, mitigate the risk associated with that. In the letter, we outline a couple of
monitoring type controls that we taiked through with Perry to help in mitigating that.
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Mr. Wachter: If | can address that. When you say that there is a possibility that a single
person has the ability to perform many aspects of the accounting functions, just to be clear though,
the procedures we have for check signers are such that there must be at least one Board signature on
a check for it to be authorized. Is that correct?

Mr. Kent: Itis. That's one mitigating control, | would say. In the end, that's a process that
could be circumvented. You can't rely on the bank to make sure that your check signers are
appropriate because nine times out of ten, that will slip through any kind of bank procedure.

Mr. Peters: As a follow-up to that, in the past when GEIDC was helping, we paid them as an
outsider to handle our books and review. Should this Board be considering what would ultimately be
a very small investment in getting some outside support of some type for the organization to make
sure that they are controls? Maybe a better way to put that is, what do other organizations our size
do? We're not the only ones with a very small staff.

Mr. Kent: | think that it's an internal decision, for sure. We see it both ways; there are a lot of
companies out there that do that type of work part-time, contracted accounting services, that would
add a layer of control but we also see it where organizations want to handle it in-house and focus on
internal control. | would say, if you are comfortable with the monitoring and controls, in your case it's
mostly Perry looking at certain things; some of the recommendations we made in the letter is that he
look at a bank statement and all the cancelled checks and all the payroll registers.

Mr. Peters: A simple control is that the reconciliations don’t get sent to the same person that's
writing the checks. If you're comfortable with that approach, I'm certainly comfortable with helping
Tammi and Perry understand how we should do that.

Mr. Kent: Like | said, that doesn't eliminate it, but again, it's kind of a cost-benefit that you
have to weigh. Can you implement those types of controls and be comfortable that the activity is
being looked at and that any issue would be caught through those kinds of reviews? [ think your
activity is such that, it is not of a huge volume, to where it's practical that those reviews are effective.

Mr. Sample: Typically, we do not generate a massive amount of checks per month and it's
easy to regulate the other things. Given the level of scrutiny we've had over our budget, we've done
everything we can to try and be conservative and | think with Chuck and Perry checking over these
things, | am confident in our situation but any recommendation you people have will certainly be
considered and vetted.

Mr. Kent: Part of the controls is the review that happens at this level, too. You're looking at
financial information and questioning to the extent of your questions. That's part of the control
process.

Mr. Peters: This is the most active group, of all the Boards |'ve served on, in particular
economic development Boards, this is the only Board that I've sat on where people actually look at
the financials and ask questions.

Mr. Kent: That's an important part. The second one we kind of talked about; taking the
discussion we had related to the allowance in saying you should think about developing a process,
think about if there is criteria, think about if there is an annual process or quarterly process that you go
through that discusses the loan portfolio and monitoring of the activity involved.

The last comment in the letter is just a general comment on documenting some of your internal
processes and policies. You have internal processes and policies, it's just a matter of taking them
and putting them on paper.

Mr. Peters: To those last two bullet points, it's something the Finance Committee will look in
to. What is our policy for if we've made a loan, what are the triggering events that might cause us to
take some portion of that and create an allowance for it? For example, if there is a technical default —
whoever we loaned the money to doesn't send some sort of reporting that they're supposed to which
puts them in a technical default, maybe that triggers us saying that we believe that is a first sign that
they may not be able to perform. We put an allowance or reserve of 5% or whatever, those types of
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things. If there is a loan that actually defaults that doesn’t make a payment, then that actually triggers
a bigger allowance. If that's what you're saying, then just recommending that we, as an Authority,
further define our internal process for how to account for the loans we have out. Over the next couple
of months, we’ll talk more about that and get a policy put together that we can present to all of you
and we can take action on that.

Mr. Kent: That's all of the points we wanted to talk about. The last page is our contact
information; if you see anything we haven't covered in the draft over the next few days, don't hesitate
to contact us or if you want to contact us through Perry, that's fine too. We are certainly available for
questions.

Mr. Wood: If | could summarize. No major findings, that's great news. Some big
recommendations, some enhanced reporting on the audit based on MaherDuessel's feedback. | just
want to say that for our first year with this new firm, | think they did a really good job. They spent a
week in our office really digging into historical information that we hadn’t been over for a long time.
Since we had the same auditor for five years, it was interesting to have a new perspective with the
new auditor. | would recommend that we enter into a long-term agreement with MaherDuessel, a
three or four-year agreement to audit ECGRA, and to remind the Board that this is simply a draft. The
first step is to have the auditors come in with a first draft to gain feedback from the Board. If you need
to reach out to myself as Director or Mr. Peters as Treasurer or with questions specifically for the
auditors, they have provided contact information, don't hesitate to reach out to them directly as well.

We will then formulate a second draft; we'll circulate that to you via email. If there aren't any
major objections or concerns, we will lock at accepting it into record at the September Board Meeting.
If there are further discussions that need to take place, we will do it either at a Finance Committee
Meeting or the September Board Meeting.

Mr. Sample: Thank you for your professionalism and your timely report.

Mr. Kent: Thank you. We appreciate it.

b. STEAM Program

Ms. Huber: Thank you very much for having us. | am Kris Huber with the Millcreek Education
Foundation and | brought Kyle Bucholtz help with some questions and to give a little information as
well. He is with the School District and has a lot of responsibilities as they relate to STEAM and
STEM, specifically at the High School.

I am here to talk about the initiatives we do completely as a district. | was asked to share a
little about the great leaps we are making. To start, we have vision. | got involved in the district years
ago, before | even had children. Dr. Salmon was Superintendent and he said, ‘| need help with grants
for J.S. Wilson” and he got me involved. Then | was kind of out of it until my kids started in the district
when | said, “it's Kindergarten; where's the science?” Now my kids are going into sixth grade and I've
been pushing and pushing since day one.

| came on as a Board of Trustee to the Foundation in 2013, and at the end of 2014, they
realized they needed someone kind of as an administrator. So, in full disclosure, my maximum hours
is supposed to be about 15 hours a week; I'm supposed to be part-time doing this but it has taken way
more time than that. This is something that | have a passion for and a love for and | hope you see
that in the way that | talk about what's going on in the district.

All of the school districts are dealing with the state mandates; the different aspects of Common
Core, No Child Left Behind, and more recently the Helping Students Succeed Act, in addition to the
appeasers, the pensions, the things that are required by law. If you've been watching what's been
happening to the Millcreek School District, you know there is a misconception that there is a surplus.
There isn't a surplus; we have to be very conservative. One of the things that is coming up that
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people don't realize is The Erie County Technical School is getting ready to do a major campaign and
Millcreek is responsible for 20% of whatever they decide their campaign total is because that's how
many of our students use the services there.

What we're doing as a district is looking at different ways to collaborate. One of the things on
the Foundation side of things is we distribute grants to teachers. Right now, with many grants we are
forcing them to think more collaboratively. When the theater program came to us and said, “Ve need
ten headsets”, we replied, “Your production is never the same week as the other schools.” We got
them thinking about how to ask for something that can be used across the district.

I mentioned at the check presentation after the Education Foundation Challenge and |
mentioned to all of you, “Why aren’t we collaborating with other school districts?” Daria Devlin and |
met years ago, when she did her very first Power Paint to get PEPS off the ground. She took one of
my classes here at Penn State, a Fundamentals of Fundraising course, and | coached her on how to
get this up and going? And we see what's happening because she is the backbone of what is going
on.

In our district, it's a little bit different. We talk about what we can do to drive what our students
need. But we are in a different age and our students are telling us what they need to. This is the first
generation that has at its disposal things that we never would have imagined when | was growing up
and they lead us through these things.

As a Foundation, we try to find the funding that the teachers are asking for. We send them off
to conferences and they come back all excited and energized and there's no money to do it. You can
imagine the frustration.

Two and a half years ago, several teachers and principals went to a conference and they
came back talking about Maker Spaces. They wanted to know how we could get this great equipment
into our buildings. The teachers were excited to do this; the principals were energized by this. It kind
of fell flat and they felt that we would never be able to do this. | started doing research and realized
that the funding right now is for girls; so, we initiated a program, Full Steam Ahead, for fifth grade girls
in the district. i's a before-school program, as the pilot program this past year, and we asked the girls
what they wanted to leam about. We did this before-school program funded by the VWR Foundation;
we were able to get the equipment for these maker spaces because of this grant.

But something bigger happened with this Full Steam Ahead program,; these fifth-grade girls
would come in every moming for eight days and it was from 7:30 am — 9:00am when school started,
and the parents were coming to me on the second day saying, ‘| can't get them to school at 9:00; I'm
pulling them, dragging them to get them to school. But on STEAM days, they want to be there at 7:15
because they want to be ready.”

I'll give you an example of some of the things we did; they were simple things. The grant paid
for a stipend for the women in the community to come and present. Every single one of them turned
down the stipend so it could be put back into the program. We had Dr. Saldanha from St. Vincent,
she’s a breast surgeon, she came in and she taught them how to suture with fake skin and bananas;
you could’ve heard a pin drop.

We had Michele Vitali, professor at Edinboro University who does forensic art; we were a little
nervous initially because she takes skulls and determines who they are, but they did it. Every single
class was hands-on. There were 18 girls that participated and they all left with hands-on things that
they then shared with all their classmates. The bigger thing was that we were able to get these items
that these teachers wanted along for their maker spaces.

The thing about our district is we do more with less. I'm at every School Board meeting, every
Committee meeting that | can be at, and | sit there and listen and see the charts go up again and
again; how much less Millcreek pays per student than every surrounding district. it would shock you
the difference. The Erie School District spends more per student but we are able to do more with less
because we do have great teachers who put in the exira, as do all schools and districts.
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Part of what we do is making new connections. As | mentioned to a few of you, | sit on the
Erie Regional Library Foundation Board. If you're watching what they're doing, this is being propelled
by what the school districts are sometimes lacking but certainly what they're asking for. They are
putting together the idea lab, they're putting together the maker spaces, the team spaces; that's for all
these students. We don’t want to duplicate services, we want to enhance them. That's why | felt it
was important to get together with Jim Dieble, get with Erin and say, "How can we be a part of this?
Just because we're outlying and not in the center city, our students use those services just as much
as everybody else.”

That's our responsibility as a district and as a Foundation is to set up these partnerships, and
we have. We continue to meet with Foundations, the VWR Foundation; the greater part of it is
Foundation Source. If you know anything about Foundation Source, when you get your foot in the
door and show that what you're doing is positive and has a great response and is successful, they
have more funding for you.

Before | even finished the program, after the first quarterly report, they said, "How can we help
you?” We are looking, as a district, at bigger initiatives to try to reach all the things that the teachers
are asking for. The first step though is letting the teachers know that we do want to hear what their
great ideas are. For so long we were always saying that we didn’'t have the money; money isn't the
only way to get things accomplished. That is something that as a Foundation we are encouraging
them that if they know what they want, let us help you get it.

| recently had the experience of going to see the STEAM truck; it came from Georgia and went
to the library in Jamestown. It was a collaborative that they put together through the Chautauqua
Institute; it was phenomenal. It was like one of those food trucks where they open up all the sides and
then they had tents and the kids would walk through the centers and do the different things. That's
the kind of thing that our area needs. I've talked to the Library Foundation and we're working on ideas
of how we could make that happen; kind of like that mobile book lab where you take that around and
people are able to take out books. Let's getthat STEAM lab going, getting it to all the districts, all the
outlying areas of Erie County.

Perry, Tom, and | talked about if what we do is a model for other schools; certainly.

Everything we do we get from concepts here and there but it always goes back to student-driven. The
teachers out there who are saying, “This is what the students are asking for.” Our students are much
smarter than we give them credit for; we don't often ask them what they want and what will help them
learn.

Every year since | started on the Foundation Board, | go to the Seniors and ask what they wish
they had, what they wish would have been different. The first year | was really nervous about what
they were going to say and surprisingly the number one item for non-academic was air conditioning in
the high school. That is something that is on the top of our minds; what we can do to make it more
comfortable for them. The second was more honors courses, more Honors College courses, more
AP courses, and the fourth one was study groups; those don't cost a thing. What canwe do as a
Foundation to support the district? What can the district do to support these students?

We're asking them and we're getting the feedback, but we're asking them for solutions {oo;
don’t just come to us with problems. That's what we're asking the teachers to do, as a Foundation;
tell us what's going on and let's work together to come up with a solution. We always want them to
feel comfortable with saying what they want and we'll work with them to get it.

When you talk about a model, the Full Steam Ahead Program was based on (inaudible); they
gave us all their curriculum, all their science girls; anything we wanted they said, “This is yours. It's
open to anyone.” And everything we do is in that manner. We work with partners and collaborators
who are excited to share with us what they did and what was successful. We're the same way, we'li
do that with anyone.
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| have to say, that from district to district, obviously there is a diverse population but there are
also different needs. Cne of the things that Daria and | talked about when we talk about coltaborating
between districts, and there's several models that we're looking at, one of the things that we're
cognizant of is that we don't want either one to appear that if there’s something we have in the
Milicreek School District to give to the Erie School District, we don’t want it to appear like we're giving
hand-outs. That's not what this is about. We're thinking on a much larger scale of collaboration on
things that we both need that we can give to each other.

When there’s a real possibility that they might get rid of all the high schools in the City of Erie,
we took notice; we stood up; we want to welcome those students if that is ever a possibility. In all of
that, we have to have some strategies and be prepared to meet the needs of those kids and exceed
what any expectations would be.

The district helped us to bring the premier of the movie, “Most Likely to Succeed.” If you have
not seen this documentary | would suggest that you do take a look at it. We worked with Edinboro
University and had a pane! discussion afterwards of professors talking about the change in education;
our model for education has not changed since the Industrial Revolution. We still expect kids in
elementary school to follow in a line and have certain standards of sitting at a desk or sitting at a
table, and one of the things we know is that these kids are nothing like the Industrial Revolution. They
are the ones thinking up the ideas and so often, we shut them out.

As part of maker spaces and all this idea and innovation, some of the things that has come up
is flexible seating. If you have a child sit in a chair for 45-90 minutes, at any level K-12, is that exactly
what they need? No. |s every child's needs different? Yes. So, we have six classrooms in the
district right now that have flexible seating that we have helped support them with, and it could be
everything from accommodating small groups working together, individual working, or the child that
just can't sit still. | have one. | have twin daughters going into sixth grade and | have a daughter who
has to multi-task all the time in order to be effective and successful. Some teachers can't handle that;
but if she's sitting at a desk, it's not going to work. You have to have advocates, like myself and Kyle,
to speak up.

We are here today to talk about some of the advancements. | do have some budget
information | have given to Perry; | have five copies. We're a very lean operation; we do not have an
office, | work out of my home, and our mailbox is at MYAA. it's purposeful. We don’t want to spend
any extra money because we want to get it back into the schools.

Kyle is going to talk a bit about the McDowell Innovation Learning Lab because it kind of is that
show of where we're going K-12. In the K-5, we're working on those maker spaces; how can we give
them experiences. How much time do you realize that our kids in the districts around Erie spend in
indoor recess? At most schools, they might be sitting, or sitting at a movie, or drawing; but we can
have organized play for them. They're asking for it.

In the middle school level, we have the tech education, we have a STEM camp and it grows
even more at MIHS (9" and 10™) and at McDowell (11" and 12™). Kyle is going to talk a little about
what's going on at the high school level, but know that what we're doing in K-8 is the building blocks
to allow the kids be comfortable to say, “You know what | wish we had here?" and start that
entrepreneurial and innovative thinking and thoughts about how we go to the next leve! of
development for these kids that learn completely differently and have it open up. \We're an open
book; we share what we have with the other districts.

Mr. Barney: | have one question before we move on, just for clarity. Your overall STEM
Program is for both male and female, correct? Because when you addressed the early before school,
you spoke on the females coming and | wanted to make sure that was just for that particular program.

Ms. Huber: Yes, it is for male and female. That was just an initiative, Full Steam Ahead for
girls and the reason is because studies have shown that if you don't introduce girls by seventh grade
into STEAM, they think they are not qualified. Twenty percent enter into college of STEAM girls, but
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less than 20% enter into the jobs; and we all know that the STEAM jobs are the jobs of the future with
the most longevity. That's how that came about was to get the equipment into the schools.

Mr. Bucholtz: | teach at the high school; I'm in the Tech Ed department and also in the
Business department. But | also do the robotics program; | have over 60 students involved in my
robotics program and 24 of those are females, which is awesome. Eighty percent of those students
who graduate go into a STEM field after they leave us, so that's either in the workforce orinto a
college program involving STEM; that's very exciting.

We came up with this idea of the Innovation Learning Lab and we have some partners. Bliley
and Sunburst Electronics said, “This is awesome. We want to get behind you.” They are taking
equipment they are not using, donating it to our Innovation Leaming Lab, they are also on board to
buy a 3-D printer, along with the 3-D printer we got from ECGRA and the Ignite Grant last year
through Penn State, and take those and put them in a facility we can actually have students working
in. Right now, | came up with this idea because right now they're working at a table in my wood shop
and | said, “This just doesn't work. We're making great products, we're making great strides ahead,
but we need a place for this to happen.” We're doing things, we're drawing models in our 3-D
software and we're putting on virtual reality headsets so the students can actually ook around their
model. No one else is doing that in the area, especially at the high school ievel. We're really
advanced and we're progressing even more. That's what we're here to talk about is where can we go
with our needs. I'm excited to continue this work to see where this will lead us.

Ms. Huber: Any questions? Woe're here asking for your support. The corporations are saying,
“We want your students.” They want McDowell students; they are a different breed. | had to
opportunity to go with Kyle and Brian Fuller, the principal at McDowell High School, and we went to
Merritt Corporation. One of our students, a former McDowell student, was there. They want a
specific type of student; they're not looking for the technical student at the technical schools
specifically for some of their needs.

One of the things we did on the tour at the Merritt Corporation was, and | know this is the
change is that these kids are actually learning design and creation and coming up with the solutions,
and that's the type of students, the Robotics students, the STEAM students, the STEM students, the
students that have that vision of how to make it better and putting them in that type of position. The
gentleman at Merritt said, “We want four of your students by the end of next year. We want them.”
These are positions that are paying six figures and it's helping them get through college. He just
enrolled here at Penn State Behrend. They are coming to us. Bill Hilbert said, “What can | do?” So,
we’re working with RedDog and we have some ideas we want to work on.

Mr. Peters: We funded a program at Fairview that is kind of similar. Obviously, we have
shown support of the Foundations. We've now heard more than one teacher and non-administration
official come and say, “We recognize a need and we are working through that need.” | think you're to
be applauded for that; that is terrific. The question | have, and it's probably tough to answer in the
time that we have, but maybe in the future before we continue to fund programs like this if we have an
answer to the question. And that question is, where are curriculum directors, where is the teacher's
union, and where is Harrisburg in understanding that the world has changed? Exactly like you said,
whether it's flexible seating or maker spaces or non-traditional labs, or integrating art with science;
where are the people that can actually make this happen in a big way?

Erie County is blessed because of the wisdom of County Council many years ago creating an
organization like ECGRA, to fund these sort of innovative and interesting ideas and the Legislature, by
the way, for coming up with pools of money for this type of thing as a result of gaming. Where are the
people that really control the purse strings? It makes me sick when | hear that we have teachers that
are trying to make this happen without real money coming this direction. There has got to be a way to
skinny up budgets and direct this money.
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Ms. Huber: That's what my job has been; | am pushing. Since my kids were in Kindergarten,
I've been meeting with the curriculum directing asking, “Where is this? They were doing it in
Preschool, why aren't they doing it in Kindergarten?” What happened with the STEAM Program is
how do you pay for that and support it year after year? PTA stood up and said, “We're here. We've
seen the success. We know it works. We know we can get this done." Meeting with Bill Hall, the
Superintendent, he was reluctant at the beginning. He said, “I've got to be honest with you, Kris. |
don't know about this." He said to me a month ago, “We're ripping the band-aid off; we're doing it
across the board.”

Mr. Peters: Perry, then maybe the next time the real answer, because this Board is going to
be continued to be asked for money, is we should have curriculum directors participate. We should
see the whites of their eyes and be able to say, “Do you get it?" Like you and the guy from Fairview,
they're working really hard to make these great things happen.

Mr. Wood: Just for the record, the guy from Fairview's partner is the director of curriculum.

Mr. Bucholtz: If | could follow along there; the administration actually said to me this last year
and they've said it multiple times, “We want to have the same opportunities for your robotics students
and support that the football team has. They have actually come to me and said that. There has
been, | think, some reluctance but when multiple administrators come and say that . . .

Mr. Peters: | would venture to say, and I'm no educator, but | would venture to guess that
more people will make their living off of working in some field related to robotics than they will working
in some field related to football.

Ms. Huber: Our curriculum directors were supposed to be here but the one is on a college
visit with his daughter and the other one just started a week ago and today was principal meetings,
and our Superintendent is on vacation. They had all planned on being here but it is kind of a weird
time.

Mr. Wachter: | have one question, just for this Board to keep in mind, when the Fairview
project was funded, first of all | believe it was funded out of the Pilot Program’s Funds which this
Board was bullied into eliminating because of short-sighted policies put forth by certain legislators and
elected officials.

Secondly, when you funded the Fairview program, you put a requirement in that the curriculum
that was being developed was to be developed with the thought and with the design that it would be
able to be replicated and be provided to every district in Erie County. That's the point of a pilot
project; if it works, you want to be able to replicate it throughout the county. This seems like a
program that could almost follow along that path but you need a bucket of funds to pull from and you
also need to decide how those pilot parameters are being able to be replicated throughout Erie
County and can be applied to this as well.

Ms. Huber: | think we have to be careful with those boundaries of replication because they are
1,600 students and we are almost 7,000. The diversity between the two, certainly the Erie School
district. | think we have to be careful because we get back into that whole idea of, "You should follow
this.” The openness in our strategy is accepting what the students are saying to us, accepting what
the teachers are saying who are going off to these conferences around the country and coming back
with world thinking. We don't always get that locally.

Mr. Wood: It's a point well taken. Models are only replicable to a certain extent. They need to
be adapted in the situation.

Mr. Peters: The answer might be, and this probably needs to go to Committee, that the
program isn't necessarily to take what the gentlemen in Fairview has done and shove it down the
throats of every other school district. it may be a model where we have an Innovation, Education
Grant process or something like that where it does allow for some flexibility. | think that we should
always say to McDowell or Harborcreek or iroquois, “You should feel free to call the guy at Fairview
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and get his curriculum. He will give it to you because we paid for it.” We don't want to say that YOU
MUST use this and shove it down your throat.

Mr. Wood: | think you're right. It's kind of like what we did for the Universities; we created a
platform for them to better network with each other and collaborate and build capacity within their
organizations. | want to commend you for what you've done so far; it is absolutely amazing. The fact
that you are working with another school district Foundation is part of our overall goal to improve this
community; those relationships can be transformational.

Mr. Peters: Right on. Compliments for doing that on your own with Daria. That is huge and
it's something we talk about all the time. We appreciate it.

Ms. Huber: We have to work together. We are in such close proximity. I'm there.

Mr. Wood: So, for the Board to just tuck away for future discussion, one of the most powerful
things funders can do is create platforms for communication and then learn from those platforms and
then provide funding to build capacity.

Mr. Wachter: One more thing; as is my practice and policy, anytime someone comes up and
makes a presentation that my firm represents, | want you to know that going in. We do represent the
Milicreek Township School District and we did set up the Foundation many, many years ago.

Mr. Sample: Thank you very much. It was very informative.

Mr. Peters: Thank you for your commitment to the students and education.

Ms. Huber: Thank you for having us.

COMMITTEE REPORTS

a. Treasurer's Report — Mr. Peters: You all have heard about the audit; | don’t think we need to
discuss that any further unless somebody wants too, but as Perry said and Tim had a couple
of little notes that there might be some changes coming if any of you have any changes. | do
want to reiterate, because it's been said like three times now, don't feel you have to call me or
Perry if you have questions about that audit; call MaherDuessel directly if you feel more
comfortable. | really liked working with these guys; it was far more interactive than with our
prior auditor. | thought it was a really nice experience. | did not work with TJ, it was with Jeff
because he's the more senior guy; if you want to talk, | would recommend you talk to him. |
suspect he has a more global perspective.

Mr. Wood: They made themselves available regularly and we had several discussions
with them. | actually feel like | learned something.

Mr. Peters: Is there anything that any of you want us to take back right now just to get
it off your plate, or do you just want to take some time and look at it and we’'ll regroup next
month?

Mr. Wood: | think it's worth noting that they also audit the County.

Mr. Sample: There were only certain people that met the parameters of the
requirement for this type of audit.

Mr. Peters: We genuinely tried to get an Erie firm to keep the funds here in Erie but no
one had the qualifications. But they do have an Erie office.

With that, you have in front of you on your SharePoint, the financial package. Like
usual, it starts with the P & L, then you have the Balance Sheet and of course you've all heard
about how much money was there at the end of our year and cash balances are slightly less
than that because we have written checks, the Statement of Cash Flows for July.

Mr. Wood: Can | just make a comment on the Balance Sheet for the record? One of
the conversations with MaherDuessel was whether or not this Lead Asset Endowment should
even be on the Balance Sheet. Our other auditors completely missed it; the Community
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Foundation gives the opinion that it probably should be and MaherDuessel says they have
seen it done different ways but they have worked with numerous community foundations and
they don't believe it should be on your Balance Sheet. It's here on your July financials.

Mr, Peters: | think we need a legal opinion as much as we need an accounting one. |
really don’t want to keep changing the structure of the Balance Sheet without making sure we
really got it right. As you remember, two different types of Endowments, too — Donor Advised,
which we have no control over that money; Agency, we do have certain controls of that money
that don't exist with the other one. 1 get it with the Donor Advised because that is not our
money anymore; the other one, it kind of is but kind of isn’t.

Mr. Wood: If you want a legal opinion, let's take the time to get a legal opinion.

Mr. Peters: We get advice from our advisors at the Community Foundation that's cne
thing, our prior auditors don’t ever catch it in four or five years, and now the new folks come in
and - | just think there's so much discussion around it. | do not have the skill set or the
educational background to advise my colleagues on which way we should go.

Mr. Wood: It is not addressed explicitly by the GASB Rules of the County. So, if it was
explicit, that would be one thing but it has never been explicitly addressed.

Mr. Peters: | don’t know who necessarily to ask. It's not you (speaking to Mr.
Wachter).

Mr. Wachter: Itis not me. It's probably going to be Dave Mosier or Jerry Wegley.
Dave Mosier doesn’t have his CPA but he often handles these particular things. Jerry Wegley
does have his CPA; they are both in the business department and are familiar. Jerry is a
former auditor so it's a conversation | could have with them.

Mr. Peters: Thoughts? Should we just do that?

Collective agreement.

Mr. Peters: Candidly, | have not had an opportunity because | have been traveling the
last two weeks, to look at the Budget vs. Actual. | am going to defer to Perry if there is
anything specific. You see there are categories where we're under and categories where
we're over; | don't know if you want to address that Perry?

Mr. Wood: The only one | want to address is we made some sweeping budget
reductions, and some of those areas, we reduced it further than previous expenditures; one is
Professional Development. We reduced it to $5,000 but we had already spent $6,300;
neediess to say, we will not be spending any more in that category. | wanted to bring it to your
attention that those were expenditures prior to the budget reductions.

Mr. Peters: Perry, would you also do me favor and run through the Schedule of Grant
Reserve?

Mr. Wood: Sure. Atthe top is Restricted Funds and those are to recognized quarterly
payments as they come in. We did receive another round of gaming funds from the State and
I'll address that in a moment here because it's a pro-rated amount. Then there is a summary
of disbursements by quarter. There is the month of July and then year-to-date; we don’t have
any disbursements in July. The next one will be in September.

Today is the day where Community Assets funding is due, so Tom and | will be
working on those grant books as soon as they are completed; they will be distributed
electronically to the Board. If you want a printed copy, we would be more than happy to print
you out a grant book and we will deliver that to you. Tom is also going to do a summary of
each of those grant requests for Community Assets for your review. After you have had time
to review them, we will convene a grants panel. We have three community advisory panel
members to add to it this year; we got them both from the Jefferson Educational Society Civic
Leadership Academy; three people have volunteered to help us review grants. We will
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advertise that meeting and convene that group and have you score the Community Assets as
we always do.

Under the Committed section of the Schedule of Grant Reserve, we are adding another
column. We have the month, the amount remaining, and now we have the original
commitment so you have something to compare it to; you can see what phase we're at with
these larger multi-year grants. We're trying to make that information as clear as possible.

The finai report is the Check Detail.

Mr. Peters: Are there any questions on the Check Detail or the Grant Reserve? | like

the new approach with the amount on the Grant Reserve. Are there any questions on any of the
financial reports?

Mr. Barney makes a motion to approve the financials. Mr. Domino seconds the motion. Motion
carries 7 - 0.

b. Regional Assets Committee — There was no meeting of the Regional Assets Committee.
¢. Strategic Planning Committee — There was no meeting of the Strategic Planning Commiittee.
d. Update from County Council = Mr. Breneman has nothing to report.

e. Update from County Executive’'s Office — Mr. Lee: Thank you Mr. Chairman. As many of you
know, | was down at the White House last month which was a great experience. | went down
to represent Erie County; received a tour, met with several of the White House Officials from
the various Cabinet members. The purpose of the meeting was to build a better relationship
with local government; it was a very productive day and a great honor to represent Erie
County. It's good to be home, but we have a lot of work to do collectively that’s for sure.

Moving off of that and going into an update of the Summer Jobs Program. Tomorrow
is going to be the final day for the majority of students; there are a few students that are
working into next week and that was approved based on when they started, because they
started a week later. There is a total of 180 students completing the program with about 45
employers this year. The breakdown of the employers was 58% were inside the City of Erie;
42% were outside the City of Erie. We're still working toward that 50-50. As far as student
participation, it's about 68% in the City of Erie, 32% outside the City of Erie. Again, we are
working very diligently at attempting to get a 50-50 mix.

The good part is that because we're doing an extended contract, this is going to permit
GECAC to work year-round on some of those particular areas. Next year, hopefully we will
have more employers and we will be able to be closer to that 50-50 goal.

On to the Community College. As many of you know, the Empower Erie completed
their Feasibility Study and their College Plan. On June 27, County Council adopted the plan
and also stated that they wanted the Administration to submit the plan to the State, which we
did June 30, 2017.

Part two of this particular resolution was that the County would be the local sponsor for
the Community College. Now that the application is down at the State and is with the State
Board of Education, there is a process that can take up to one year. The Board of Education
has set up a sub-committee that will be reviewing the plan. They will be meeting September
13; in that particular meeting they are going to ask the Governor's Office to review from a
funding standpoint if there is an appetite to put this in the budget for 2018-19. Then they are
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also going to ask the Pennsylvania Department of Education to take a look and come back
with recommendations and findings.

The County Executive has asked me to spearhead this particular initiative. There will
be a public hearing and we will obtain more information as the sub-committee gives direction
on that. | would encourage you to all look at the County website; we have a certain section
just for the Community College and we have all the keys items in there as far as real-time. We
want to continue to keep the community engaged as we go through this process.

The last topic is Up For The Job Campaign initiative. This is an initiative that we've
been working on for the last seven to eight months; the County Executive is heading it but she
has invited the Chamber of Commerce, she has invited the local Union from GE, as well as the
Governor's Office. The Community Foundation has been invited to the table and ECGRA has
been invited to the table.

It is an initiative to market our region to employers that are looking to, perhaps, start up
a company or expand a company in the way of manufacturing. It's not just for GE; it's really
for any advanced skill-set worker that is here in this particular region that we really want to try
and engage and really try to get them employed.

This initiative, of course, is going to require funding and this is the reason I'm bringing it
up right now. The County of Erie will be going to County Council to request that they invest in
this particular initiative; the Erie Chamber is approaching the Erie Community Foundation to
request funding for this. We would like ECGRA to consider, and of course we would submit a
proposal giving some of the key objectives and goals, and of course a budget, for this.

But here’s the thing; timing is very, very tight on this. We're looking to hopefully kick
this off in the next 30 days; especially in light of what is going on now. We have been working
on this for the last seven or eight months so the timing is, everything is just sort of working
together.

We will be going to the State for Phase 2 because this is a much bigger puzzle we're
working with here and we understand that it's going to require more money than we can
possibly put in; it's probably starting at about $180,000 but it's going to require much more
than that. We really want to get Phase One going and this was my purpose of bringing it up to
the Board and | would be more than happy to address any questions. Thank you.

Mr. Sample: Unfortunately, we just did away with the Pilot Project and Special
Projects. We're certainly going to review it but this would have been one of the typical perfect
applications for it and we were encouraged not to have any fluff, if you will, in our budget.
Thank you for your response and information.

Mr. Barney: | have a question about the individuals who started the Summer Jobs
Program; have they reached the end or did we lose a substantial number?

Mr. Lee: No, we didn't lose a substantial number. As you know, for the last three
years the completion rate has been 95% and we expect it to be at 95%, which is really good.
Energize Erie, that is a group that Councilman Horton works with, Saint James; young men
who really may be going through some challenging times in their life. It's a small group,
maybe about 10 individuals. They may have had some run-ins with juvenile probation and so
forth; a group of those individuals were placed into the program — and this was like a test
market — because we want to open up the program to everyone. Unfortunately, many of them
were not ready for the program. The maturity level wasn't there and the focus. In that test
market there were eight students; six did not make it through. But this is a program where we
like to give opportunity.

I have instructed Mr. Arrington for next year to work a little more closely and really
hone in and identify who we are prescreening; he is aware of some of the concerns from the
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outset but it was really something he wanted to try. It is just that that particular sector we will
revisit and lock at doing things a little bit differently.

Mr. Sample: And, at times, that is the sector that we need to encourage. | would just
encourage Mr. Arrington, and | know you and | had spoken of the frustration in the County as
to not having enough advance information about the meetings, that as long as they have a
contract that is multiple year, | would assume that there could be a schedule that could be put
out the first of the year so that people can put this on their calendar. | feel there would have
been much better participation in Corry if there had been something other than a two-day
notification of the meeting.

To your point, with the multiple year contract that should not become an issue.
Unfortunately, in Corry, we have had a transition of the people that were in charge of that
program, but he is still available.

Mr. Peters: Gary, is there a specific ask there?

Mr. Lee: Yes, for the Jobs Initiative. The ask is, at this time, $60,000. That has to be
taken into account with what we were going to be abie to get from the Erie Community
Foundation, what we’re going to be able to get from Erie County. But that would be the ask.

| have spoken to Mr. Wood about this, and to the Chairman’s point, this would have
been a perfect potential project to be considered under the Special Projects but unfortunately
we don’t have that bucket of money any longer. What I’'m asking is that perhaps the Board
provide some direction to Mr. Wood as far as what would be appropriate for this particular
initiative.

Mr. Peters: | appreciate that. The time frame is going to be tough with how we work
as an organization with advertising meetings, but it sounds like maybe there are two reasons
now for Mr. Paris's committee to get together. One is we're going to keep having school
foundations coming and asking for money and we don't have any vehicle to deal with that, and
two, we have no vehicle at this point to do stuff like this. | think Strategic Planning, and I think
we may need to have Tim participate in those meetings as well, we are going to have to see if
there is something that we can do.

Sometimes | feel like I'm the unofficial history-keeper of how this stuff goes down, and |
apologize if | sound like a broken record but, Judge Dunlavey said, “You don’t just get to write
checks to people that show up. | don't care if it's a politician or not. You don't just get to write
a check.” All of the politicians have wanted us to ignore that ruling and this Board has been
really aggressive about not ignoring it, with one minor exception. We said, “You know, we
have an cperating budget and it would not be inappropriate to use funds, and we had legal
opinion and advice on this, to have this sort of flexible spending account that we can use to
test concepts.”

We're not playing favorites with the County Executive who has this idea or with the
Fairview guy who has that idea. We're not playing favorites. We're simply educating
ourselves and the community as to whether this is going to work or not. We don't have that
tool. | am somewhat angry that | didn't fight harder on this but now we have to go back to the
same people who told us we had to take this away and tell them, “No, we can't fund your
project.”

Literally, Gary, if you came to us with an application saying, “Here’s my application for
$60,000,” we would have no ability to process that because in essence what Judge Dunlavey's
ruling said is that, and correct me if I'm wrong Tim, but it says that we need to allow for due
process on that and invite others to give their ideas on how to handie GE employees or
whatever.

It sounds to me, like in this case, we may not be able to meet your timeline. But | think
it's incumbent upon this Board, particularly the Strategic Planning Committee, to talk about
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what now. We have had two examples today that we're kind of in a position that our hands
are tied. By the way, we're going to take a bunch of heat because they are going to say, “Well
you're just throwing that back in our face.” No. Take the time to understand what we do here
and why we do it, and what the history is of why we do it.

Judge Dunlavey may be gone; he's retired and maybe he doesn't care anymore, but
there is a ruling out there.

Mr. Wachter: One thing to consider too with the Pilot Programs funds, the Special
Projects funds that we had in place, we had a Board-approved policy regarding how those
funds were to be spent and on what criteria you had to base those decisions on. That policy
was designed with Judge Dunlavey's concerns in mind, but certainly with a little practicality
into it as to be able to be nimble and to respond to the immediate needs with programs that
are capable of repetition through all of Erie County or that apply to all of Erie County.

That was kept in the operating budget for flexibility purposes and because it truly
wasn't your standard program. [f a grant program or a funding bucket was created where we
could firm up some of those guidelines and those regulations, such that we had a more formal
process for that, we might lose some of the flexibility but you could have the availability. And
we keep it out of the operating budget. Does that make sense?

Mr. Peters: Just to make sure | understand. Keep it out of the operating budget but
create a new bucket and have new policies on how we evaluate those asks.

Mr. Wachter: | think that would be the only way unless you just want to call it what it
was and put it back in the operating budget.

Mr. Sample: The problem, my frustration, and you hit on a key word and that was
opportunity; this would have been a perfect opportunity for us to go forward and do what |
thought we were charged in doing. How much time and money and frustration we've spent in
doing everything the way that everybody wants it done; we knew full well that this was going to
happen, whether it be Gary's project or something else, that gave us the flexibility and the
malleability. | hate to not be able to react on an opportunity like this but frankly I'm tired of
being kicked around about how “willy-nilly” we are as an organization. | hope there is
something we can do. It's like putting a humidifier and a dehumidifier in the same room - who
wins? We're right, we're wrong.

Mr. Peters; Maybe the answer is to look at Tim's idea of creating an amendment to our
Strategic Plan that talks about these kinds of projects and move it out of the operating budget
and into the grant budget. If there are a few more hoops, whether it's the Millcreek folks or the
Fairview folks, or Corry or Gary, if there's a few more hoops that those folks have to jump
through so that the elected officials, both at the County level and the State level, feel like they
have a better understanding of what it is we do here, maybe that's what we have to do. That
might be the way we have to do it.

Mr. Yaple: Time wise, how are we going to do this?

Mr. Lee: Mr. Chairman, if | may quickly say, that's the timeline that we really wanted to
move towards but the bottom line is if there is not a vehicle in which right now there is not
based on the situation with the changes we just did with the Special Projects money, then we'll
just have to live with that timeline. It just simply boils down to that. If we're required to go
through a grant process that could take up to 60 days, it is what it is. That means for this
particular initiative, we will have to find additional money at least to get it started with,
hopefully, the consideration from ECGRA that you may consider investing in it. That is to your
point.

Mr. Sample: Does everyone understand the level of scrutiny we're going to have
because we had a budget, we amended our budget, and now we’re going to amend our
amendment of our budget.
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Mr. Peters: We're not amending our operating budget. We have pools of investment
funds available. We're amending our Strategic Plan.

Mr. Yaple: The question is whether it's going to come back and bite us.

Mr. Peters: It's going to because someone isn't going to understand. But | would
respectfully request that Councilman Brenneman and Mr. Lee try to help us get the point
across to the legislative contingent. | wish Mr. Sonney and Mr. Harkins were here to hear
what they put us through.

We had a very productive meeting in Senator Laughlin's office with several members of
County Council and Mr. Lee. Sure, there were questions, but it was productive. The local
folks, | think, generally get it. A particular council member here or there may not like what we
do, but in general | think that our process has been genuine and that we're trying to do the
right things. I'm really frustrated with our legislative contingency in Harrisburg. Let's call it
what it is; Representative Sonney and Representative Harkins have created this mess for all of
us.

If we fix this, maybe this is a better way to handle it, Mr. Chairman that now there's this
other bucket. The down side is there are going to be more hoops for the folks that want the
money need to jump through. But we all do what we have to do to get the money.

Mr. Yaple: Here's the thing — we would love to do it. But we have had some legislators
who have handcuffed us. Why don't they come up with some money to do it? They don't.
This is wrong.

Mr. Peters: Representative Sonney has never even been to one of our meetings to
have any clue what we do.

Mr. Lee: Mr. Chairman, if | may. The meeting that we had at Senator Laughlin’s office,
which was extremely productive, one of the points that | think | drove home at that time was
the Special Fund money supported the Summer JAMS Program and had we not had that
ability to use that money, then we would not have been able to react as quickly and more than
likely a whole year would have gone by without investment into the Summer Jobs Program.
To me, that is a perfect example of having some type of flexibility for merited and quality
initiatives.

Unfortunately what is happening, when you work in government, and |'ve worked in
private and government; government sometimes gets in the way of itself. They can't think
beyond today and they can'’t see the roadblocks. Unfortunately, too many individuals in
government have not worked in the private sector so there is a major disconnect and they
don't get it sometimes.

In my opinion, the Summer Jobs Program was the perfect example of why you needed
that flexibility and a fund for Special Projects.

Mr. Sample: To Chuck’s point, Jay and Gary can take this information to all these
people, but all these people had the information before; they just don't listen half the time.

Mr. Peters: Our legislative contingent just hasn’t even made an effort to understand
what we do. | need to be clear — our State legislative contingent. County Council has had
legit questions but they generally have been very supportive and | would not want my
message confused. | won't tell you about the two State legislators who have kind of put us all
in a tailspin.

Mr. Sample: County Council has had questions and listened to the answers. Don't
forget Meadville's contingency.

Mr. Paris: Mr. Wood, if | could ask, maybe we could get a meeting set up with our
Strategic Planning Committee so we can get that meeting advertised.

Mr. Sample: Thank you, Mr. Lee,
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REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wood: | think that a lot of you know that | have spent the last thirty days working on a lot of
requests for information from our erganization; some from our legislative delegates and some from
our county government. | have emailed you all the responses to those information requests. My
Executive Director's Report has the newest which came from the county clerk’s office asking us about
how our Mission Related Investments work so we put together a very detailed policy.

| think that we have been very responsive in requests for information; we have provided
information, and then some, in order to be as helpful as possible to those that are analyzing the
financials of our operation. You'll see in the Executive Director's Report the response to the Mission
Related Investment questions.

You'll also see information in there about the second quarter financials of gaming funds which
just recently came in; those will not be in the July financials because it came in at the beginning of
August. If you recognize this document, this is our standard Grants Revenue Dashboard. | just want
to focus in on the second quarter of the year. You'll see here that last year the second quarter
brought in about $300,000. This year was $172,000. That's a drastic departure; it's obviously been
on a downward trend but you'll see this year is when it stabilized - $315,000 to $300,000 is not a big
fluctuation but $172,000 is. | wanted to explain that to you that a couple things happened there.

Number one — slot machine revenue is down all across the State by about 2% so everybody
has seen decreases. The second thing is the Supreme Court Stay expired at the end of May. We get
paid on a quarterly basis. January, February, March we were fully paid for; April, May, June we only
got two of the three months paid there. Revenues could be stabilized. Presque Isle Downs & Casino
Operator has said, “We're going to escrow funds that we normally would have paid in a special
savings account, so that when Legislature finally gets it figured out, we can release those funds.”
That number is drastically smaller because it's two months rather than three. | just wanted to clear
that up.

Conversations with our government relations firm in Harrisburg, they have all said that gaming
has been tabled and will not be dealt with until September and even then, it's a maybe. There’s also
plenty of examples of media attached to the report as well as some thank you letters that came in
from grantees.

One thing | do want to ask you to consider today — part of our audit turned up the fact that our
lease expired in May. We signed that lease for the space we are in in May 2015, so under Old
Business, I'd like you to consider extending the lease for another year. | would normally ask for two
years, but | think one year makes sense, considering we don't know where we stand.

Are there any questions?

Mr. Lee: Will the lease amount remain the same?

Mr. Wood: It will. I'm glad you brought that. The lease is $1,371/month, which is a below-
market rate; it is the amount that Penn State charges itself when it uses Knowledge Park facilities for
its MBA programs and other things. It is the lowest rate allowable in Knowledge Park. Chuck tells me
it is below-market rate for the region; | don't have a square footage amount but the total monthly is
$1,371.

Mr. Lee: Thank you.

Mr. Yaple makes a motion to accept a one-year lease. Mr. Barney seconds the motion. Motion
carries 7-0.
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SOLICITOR'S REPORT

Mr. Wachter: I'll get the legal opinion on the Balance Sheet prepared and look forward to
working with Strategic Planning if that's appropriate towards how to redesign.

OLD BUSINESS
See above regarding extending ECGRA’s lease for one year.

NEW BUSINESS

No new business to report.
ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Bamey makes a motion to adjourn. Mr. Domino seconds the motion. Motion carries 7-0.
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Erie County Gaming Revenue Authority
Profit & Loss

Net Income 31,823.83 (617,286.45)

August 2017
August YTD | _ BudgetvTD 2017-18 Budget
Crdinary Income/Expense i
Income .
44800 - Gaming Revenue 172,041.71 426,612.64 !
46400 - Other Types of Income !
46410 - Interest Income - Savings 7.306.52 31,468.71 |
46420 - Interest Income - EDF #1 7,500.00 i
46421 - Interest Income - EDF #2 12,000.00 i
46422 - Interest Income - BWC 7,583.33 !
!
Total Income 179,348.23 485,164.68 !
I
'
Expansa |
62100 - Contracted Services 15,662.90 43,523.27 i 53,166.65 127,600.00
62800 - Facilities & Equipment 0.00 8,075.32 i 9,829.15 23,590.00
65000 - Office Administration 747.74 15,162.31 H 11,770.80 28,250.00
65100 - Other Types of Expenses 2,094.55 48,580.74 ! 24,791.65 59,500.00
66000 - Payroll Expenses 14,544.01 90,127.51 ! 90,083.30 216,200.00
!
Total Expense 33,049.20 20546915 | 189,641.55 455,140.00
'
|
Net Ordinary Income 146,299.03 279,695.53 i
[ ]
Other Income/Expense !
70000 - Grants / Settlements !
70050 - Municipal Settlements 43,010.43 106,653.16 |
70060 - Human Services 19,500.00 i
70070 - Spacial Events 171,014.05 i
70090 - Mu!ti-Municipal Collaboration 238,350.00 .
70120 - Summer Jobs Program 71,464.77 71,464.77 !
70130 - Small Business Financing !
70136 - Ingnite Erie Industry + University 250,000.00 i
70150 - Shaping Tomorrow i
70153 - Community College 15,000.00 i
70157 : Innovation District 2500000 "
Total 70000 - Grants / Settlements 114,475.20 896,981.98 !
!
Net Other Income (114,475.20) (so6.981.98) |
'
|
i







Erie County Gaming Revenue Authority

Balance Sheet
As of August 31, 2017

ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
10000 - ErleBank - Checking
10100 - ErieBank - Savings
10100 - Uncommitted Funds
10101 - Committed Funds
10102 - Restricted Funds
Total 10400 - ErieBank - Savings
Total Checking/Savings
Other Current Assets
12000 - Notes Receivable
12001 - Note Receivable - EDF #1
12002 - Note Receivable - EDF #2
12003 - Note Receivable - CIBA
12004 - Note Receivable - BWC
12005 - Note Receivable - Progress
Total 12000 - Notes Receivable
14500 - Prepald Insurance
Total Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Equity
30000 - Opening Balance Equity
32000 - Unrestricted Not Assets
Net Income

Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

August

44,482.23

8,034,612.23
3.402,418.23
426,612.64
11,863,643.10
11,908,125.33

500,000.00
800,000.00
18,846.25
1,000,000.00
1,000,000.00
3,318,846.25
4,063.29
3,322,909.54

15,231,034.87

2,927,064.18
12,921,257 14

{617,286 45)
15,231,034.87

\E






Erie County Gaming Revenue Authority
Statement of Cash Flows

August 2017
August
L]
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income 31,823.83
Adjustments to raconcile Net Income
to net cash provided by operations:
13000 - Lead Assets Endowment Il 2,927,064.18
14500 - Prepaid Insurance 812.66
Net cash provided by Operating Activities 2,959,700.67
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
32000 - Unrestricted Net Assets -2,927,064.18
Net cash provided by Financing Activities -2,927.064.18
Net cash increase for period 32,636.49
Cash at baginning of period 11,875,488.84

Cash at end of period 11,908,125.33






Erie County Gaming Revenue Authority

Budget vs. Actual
August 2017
mnder)
August YTD Budget Budget % of Budget
Exponse
62100 - Contracted Services
62110 - Accounting Fees 5,000.00 5,000.00 6,500.00 {1,500.00) 76.92%
62120 - Government Relations Services 4,006.00 9,057.87 50,000.00 {40,942.13) 18.12%
62130 - Professional Services 3,500.00 20,124.80 36,000.00 {15,875.20) 55.90%
62140 - Legal Services 3,077.00 7,108.50 30,000.00 (22,891.50) 23.70%
62145 - Website Design 0.00 1,763.50 4,000.00 (2,246.50) 43.84%
62150 - Payroll Services 79.90 478.60 1,100.00 (621.40) 43.51%
Total 62100 - Contracted Services 15,662.90 43,523.27 127,600.00 (84,076.73) 34.11%
62800 - Facilities & Equipment
62840 - Office Equipment 0.00 1,528.96 5,000.00 {3.471.04) 30.58%
62850 - Janitorial Services 0.00 998.80 590.00 408.80 169.29%
62890 - Rent 0.00 5,547.56 18,000.00 (12,452.44) 30.82%
Total 62800 - Facilities & Equipment 0.00 8,075.32 23,590.00 (15,514.68) 34.23%
65000 - Office Administration
65010 - Books, Subscriptions, Dues 104.83 2,578.04 5,000.00 (2,421.96) 51.56%
65020 - Postage 15.99 472.88 600.00 (127.12) 78.81%
65030 - Printing 0.00 695.00 1,250.00 (555.00) 55.60%
65040 - Office Supplies 79.71 818.92 2,800.00 (1,981.08) 29.25%
65050 - Cell Phone 0.00 492.37 2,200.00 (1,707.63} 22.38%
65060 - Copier Lease 182.00 910.00 2,100.00 {1,190.00) 43.33%
65070 - Copier Printing Costs 150.00 1,198.92 3,500.00 (2,301.08) 34.25%
65080 - Bank Fees 0.00 56.98 50.00 6.98 113.96%
65085 - Professional Development 0.00 6,322.00 5,000.00 1,322.00 126.44%
65090 - Maeting Expenses 215.21 1,538.52 5,500.00 (3,961.48) 27.97%
65095 - Miscellaneous Expense 0.00 78.68 250.00 (171.32) 31.47%
Total 65000 - Office Administration 747.74 15,162.31 28,250.00 (13,087.69) 53.67%
65100 - Other Types of Expenses
65105 - Qutreach 0.00 8,143.64 12,000.00 {3,856.36) 67.86%
65110 - Advertising 138.20 7.421.12 12,000.00 (4,578.88) 61.84%
65115 - Phone/IT/Fax 1,143.69 5,999.58 18,000.00 {12,000.42) 33.33%
65120 - Insurance 812.66 4,063.30 9.,500.00 (5,436.70) 42.77%
65150 - Travel 0.00 3,108.76 8,000.00 (4,891.24) 38.86%
65160 - Spacial Projects 0.00 19,844.234 19,844.34 0.00 100.00%
Total 65100 - Other Types of Expenses 2,094.55 48,580.74 79,344.34 (30,763.60) 61.23%
66000 - Payroll Expenses
66005 - Salaries & Wages 12,902.62 81,181.71 194,000.00 (112,818.29) 41.85%
€6010 - FITW Tax 997.29 5,879.15 14,400.00 (8,520.85) 40.83%
66015 - FUTA Tax 5.93 41.99 150.00 (108.01) 27.99%
66020 - PASUI Tax 133.67 510.68 2,000.00 (1,489.32) 25.53%
66500 - Retirement 504.50 2,513.98 5,650.00 (3,136.02) 44.50%
Total 66000 - Payroll Expenses 14,544.01 90,127.51 216,200.00 (126,072.49) 41.69%

Total Expense 33,049.20 205,469.15 474,984.34 (269,515.19) 43.26%






Erie County Gaming Revenue Authority
Schedule of Grant Reserve

As of August 31, 2017
August YTD Totals/Subtotals
Uncommitted Funds 8,034,612.23
Committed Funds 3,402,418.23
2017 Restricted Funds:
First Quarter Gaming Revenue 254,570.93
Second Quarter Gaming Revenue 172,041.71 172,041.71
Third Quarter Gaming Revenue 0.00
Fourth Quarter Gaming Revenue 0.00 426,612.64
Disbursements:
First Quarter Disbursements 742,533.78
Second Quarter Disbursements 114,475.20 129,475.20
Third Quarter Disbursements 0.00
Fourth Quarter Disbursements 0.00 872,008.98
Disbursements Detail
Grants/Settlements
Community Assets
Human Services
All God's Children Ministries 2,500.00
Community Resources for Independence 7.500.00
Mission Empower 3,500.00
Sisters of Mercy 6,000.00 19,500.00
Lead Assets 0.00 0.00
Special Events
Albion Area Fair, Inc. 1,397.40
Asbury Woods Partnership, Inc. 923.10
Bayfront NATO, Inc. 3,697.50
Borough of Union City 1,804.55
Borough of Wesleyville 4,307.80
CAFE 487.90
Crime Victim Center of Erie County, Inc. 5,959.35
Downtown North East 2,696.20
Dr. Gertrude A. Barber Foundations 11,280.55
Downtown Edinboro Art & Music Festival 536.35
Edinboro Highland Games 14,875.00
Erie Art & Music Festival 13,110.40
Erie Asian Pacific American Association 2,489.65
Erie Contemporary Ballet Theatre 563.55
Erie Downtown Partnership 765.00
Erie Drum Corps Association 871.25
Erie Homes for Children & Adults 2,346.00
Erie Lions Club Save an Eye Game 992.80
Erie Regional Chamber & Growth Partnership 4,165.00
Film Society of NW PA 908.65



Erie County Gaming Revenue Authority
Schedule of Grant Reserve

As of August 31, 2017
August YTD Totals/Subtotals

Goodell Gardens & Homestead 5,363.50

Harborcreek Township 1,909.10

Haly Trinity Roman Catholic Church 18,494.30

Jefferson Educational Society 1,916.75

Lake Erie Arboretum At Frontier 5,057.50

Lake Erie Ballet 566.10

Lake Erie Fanfare, Inc. 7.092.40

Mercy Center for Women 20,839.45

The Nonprofit Partnership 1,375.30

North East Community Fair Association 3,202.80

Prasque Isle Partnership 3,791.00

Roar on the Shore 4,817.80

SafaNet 2,550.00

Saint Patrick's Church 2,135.20

Sister's of St. Joseph Neighborhood Network 4,037.50

Union City Pride 1,065.05

WQLN Public Media 2,454.80

Waterford Community Fair Association 4,247 45

Wattsburg Agricultural Society 2,310.30

YMCA of Greater Erie 2,125.00

Young Artists Debut Orchestra 854.25

Youth Leadership Institute of Erie 620.50 171,014.05
Municipalities

Multi-Municipal Collaberation

Erie Area Council of Govemments 100,000.00

Jefferson Educational Society 97.000.00

Girard Township 16,350.00

Redevelopment Authority - City of Corry 25,000.00 238,350.00

Municipal Settlements

Erie County 4,731.15 11,731.85

Greene Township 4,731.15 11,731.85

McKean Township 4,731.15 11,731.85

Millcreek Township 4,731.15 11,731.85

Summit Township 19,354.68 47,993.91

Waterford Township 4,731.15 11,731.85 106,653.16
Neighborhoods & Communities 0.00 0.00

Small Business Financing

Ignite Erie Industry + University; Penn State Erie -
The Behrend College 250,000.00 250,000.00




Erie County Gaming Revenue Authority
Schedule of Grant Reserve

As of August 31, 2017
»outh & Education
Empower Erie - Community College 15,000.00
Mercyhurst University - Innovation District 25,000.00
Summer Jobs Program 71,464.77 71,464.77 111,464.77
Total Funds Disbursements 114,475.20 §96,981.98 896,981.98
Amount Original
August Remalining Commitment
Committed Funds:
1855 Capital Partners 500,000.00 500,000.00
Enterprise Development Fund 500,000.00 500,000.00
GECAC - Summer Jobs Program 71,464.77 78,635.23 150,000.00
Penn State, The Behrend College - Ignite Erie 250,000.00 750,000.00
PennVenture Partners 1,000,000.00 1.000,000.00
Shaping Tomorrow
Empower Erie - Community College 370,000.00 400,000.00
Erig's Public Schools - Tech After Hours 133,333.00 200,000.00
Erie’s Public Schools - Community Schools 75,000.00 150,000.00
Gannon University - Go College 31,250.00 125,000.00
Gannon University - East-West Bayfront Plan 14,300.00 50,000.00
Mercyhurst University - Innovation District 350,000.00 400,000.00
Primary Health Network - School Based Health Center 100,000.00 100,000.00

Total Committed Funds 71,464.77 3,402,418.23 4,325,000.00







Date

0810172017
08/04/2017
08/07/2017
08/07/2017
08/07/2017
08/07/2017
08/07/2017
08/07/2017
08/07/2017
08/08/2017
08/11/2017
08/11/2017
082112017
08/21/2017
082112017
08/25/2017
08/26/2017
08/25/2017
08/28/2017
08/28/2017

Num

2207
2208
2209
2210
221
2212
2213
2214
2215
2216
EFT

EFT

22117
2218
2219
EFT

EFT

2220
EFT

EFT

Erie County Gaming Revenue Authority
Check Detail Report

August 2017

Great Lakes Insurance Services Group
Velocity Network, Inc.

Erie County

Greene Township

McKean Township

Millcreek Township

Summit Township

Waterford Township

Ridge Policy Group

MaherDuessel, CPA

ECCA, Inc.

Fidelity invesiments

Great America Financial Services
Pannsylvania Downtown Center, Inc.
Greater Erie Community Action Committee
ECCA, Inc.

Fidelity Investments

Times Publishing Company

VISA

VISA

August 2017 Copier Lease & Copies
August 2017 Phone/IT/Fax

2017 Second Quarter Settlement Payment
2017 Second Quarier Settlement Payment
2017 Second Quarter Settlement Payment
2017 Second Quarter Settlement Payment
2017 Second Quarter Settlemant Payment
2017 Second Quarter Settlement Payment
Government Relations Services

2016-17 Audit

07/22/2017 to 08/04/2017 Payroll
0712212017 to 08/04/2017 Retirement
August 2017 Copier Lease

Community Revitalization Academy 2016
2017 Summer Jobs

08/05/2017 to 08/18/2017 Payroll
08/05/2017 to 08/18/2017 Retirement
Legal/Public Notice of Mestings

July 2017 Visa - Perry

July 2017 Visa - Tammi

Amount

-332.00
-809.76
-4,731.15
-4,731.15
-4,731.15
-4,731.15
-19,354.68
-4,731.15
-4,006.00
-5,000.00
-6,509.80
~437.80
-332.00
-3,500.00
-71,464.77
-7,238.91
-437.40
-138.20
-3,543.81
-282.86
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ERIE COUNTY GAMING REVENUE AUTHORITY

Strategic Planning
Committee Meeting

Wednesday, August 30, 2017
11:30am - 1:30pm
5240 Knowledge Parkway, Erie, PA 16510

AGENDA

. STEM Funding

. Pilot Projects Discussion

. Future Consideration

a. MMC

b. MMS
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PACA FACILITY PROPOSED UPDATES

PACA PRESENTATION TO ECGRA\

8-30-17 11:30 AM I, o PERFORMING ARTISIS
Presenter: Mark Tanenbaum PACA ‘ A mt@ ek
Joel Marz- Business Development ki Sl

Manager Roth Marz Partnership
Architects

)

ROTH MARZ PARTNERSHIP P.C.
3505 CHAPIN STREET | ERIE, PENNSYLVANIA 146508
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PACA FACILITY PROPOSED UPDATES

=
' b PERFORMING ARTISTS
* Who IS PACA the Non- Prafit / ﬁgﬁsﬂﬁ A;LUANCE
» Why does PACA Seek Funding from ECGRA Ry fri et

* FAGADE IMPROVEMENTS

* FACADE ESTIMATE

* ROOF CONDITION & INSPECTION

* ELEVATOR CONDITION & INSPECTION

* ADA COMPLIANT RESTRGOMS 1% Floor

* OASIS PROJECT INDOOR FARMERS MARKET
* FAT TEES

* ART GALLERYS

* MAKERS SPACES

* CLASSROOMS rll"'trnu'

ROTH MARZ PARTNERSHIP P.C.
3505 CHAPIN STREEJ | ERIE, PENNSYLVANIA 16508
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8/30/2017

WHO IS PACA

* PACA HISTORY

* 501c3

* Erie Needs & Benefits
» Call to Our Mission

» Seeking Funding

PERFORMING ARTISTS
COLLECTIVE ALLIANCE

Perfomrmng Arls Cenler & Thaatro
1505 Sote Sweet - Ingl Fiocd - Ene Po

Fu“l.

ROTH MARZ PARTMERSHIP P.C.

PACA (performing Artists Collective Alliance) began
in 2010 as an independent, progressively-minded
theater and performing arts center. Housed in a
downtown historic landmark building built in 1899,
PACA seeks to help revitaiize the downtown area
and promote a sustainable artistic and cultural
community. Since its inception, hundreds of
individual performances have been held at the
venue, It is already becoming the most innovative
and progressive theater and community
performance space in the tri-state area, serving
the broadest possible audiences and performers.
PACA has hosted international classical musicians
to Grammy award-winning jazz performers, local
butoh dance performances, to local urban
wordsmiths. PACA has produced award-winning
plays with talented local actors as well as being
the first in the regional to host Equity Actors on
our stage. PACA has also produced original and
locally written world premiere performances.

3505 CHAPIN STREET | ERIE, PENNSYLVANIA 14508
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WHO IS PACA

* PACA HISTORY

* 501c3

* Erie Needs & Benefits
* Call to Our Mission

. Seekmg Funding
PERFORMING ARTISTS
ﬁ LLECTIVE ALLIANCE
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ROTH MARZ PARTNERSHIP P.C.

PACA is a regional performance, instructional, and
exhibition space for the use of the widest range of
artists and educators in the Erie community. PACA,
in it of itself Is a unique type of space. We merge
all the performing arts with the visual arts in a
shared space that allows for a lot of crossover and
synergy, giving patrons the opportunity to
experience something that they might have

missed if they were just attending a function that
caters only to their specific interests, While the
development of an arts education space Is not
entirely new to the Ene area, this business model
is, giving artists autenomy and more financial
control over their own classes and schedules, PACA
provides support, insurance, and advertising
outlets to keep the artists focused on thelr art and
their students, we help them promaote their classes
and give them the ability to market to potential
students outside of their individual networks.

3505 CHAPIN STREET | ERIE, PENNSYLVANIA 16508
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FACADE IMPROVEMENTS

* NEW WINDOWS (33)
* NEW ENTRY DOORS

* NEW PAINT & WOOD LOWER
LEVEL

* NEW SIGNAGE
* SLATE REPLACEMENT

V604 Sicle Sea - 2nd Floos - Ene. R

Y oa - PERFORMING ARTISTS
COLLECTIVE ALLIANCE
o, ‘ Poerlomring Arts Contor & Theohe

r.n Fhﬁ

ROTH MARZ PARTNERSHIP P.C.
3505 CHAPIN SIREET | ERIE, PENNSYLVANIA 14508
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15065 State Street, PACA
FACADE IMPROVEMENTS

o

ROTH MARL PARTNERSHIP P.C.
3505 CHAPIN SIREET | ERIE, PENNSYLVANIA 16508

Copyaghl 2013 Rolh sary Foingwa




8/30/2017

1505 State Street, PACA
FACADE IMPROVEMENTS
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1505 State Street, PACA
FACADE IMPROVEMENTS
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1505 State Street, PACA
FACADE IMPROVEMENTS
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1505 State Street, PACA
FACADE IMPROVEMENTS
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1505 State Street, PACA

FACADE IMPROVEMENTS
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PACA ROOF CONDITION

* Condition of the roof in areas in poor,
inspected by AW Farrell

* Water is pooling and possibly causing
damage to decking.

* |ncorrect roof was installed on north
roof and is an area of major concern.

* Some areas of the south roof are in
okay condition, minimal maintenance
to get a few more years life.

* Comglete new roof repair estimate
cos $225-$300K, not including A/E
design fees.
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PACA ELEVATOR CONDITION

« Condition of elevator is
functioning as a lever manual

o v

» Elevator inspected by Sam —
Bower, Labor and Industry P —

* Otis Elevator provided cost See T
estimate to update elevator and )

shaft, including mechanicals and
steel for $300-500K.

T
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ADA Restrooms 1%t Floor Entry

* PACA IS PROPOSING TO ADD ADA
COMPLIANT RESTROOMS ON THE
1% floor of the PACA Building.

* RMP NEEDS TO REVIEW &
CALCULATE THE NUMBER OF
FIXTURES REQUIED FOR MENS AND
WOMENS FACILITIES.

* ESTIMATED COST FOR SINGLE
MALE AND FEMALE ADA
COMPLIANT FACILITY IS $20,000.
EACH.
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PACA PROPOSED TENANTS
Indoor Farmers Market
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PACA CURRENT TENANTS
FAT TEES T Shirt Company
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PACA CURRENT TENANTS
ART GALLERYS & RETAIL
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PACA FUTURE DEVELOPMENT : 4
MAKERS SPACES
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PACA FUTURE DEVELOPMENT :
CLASSROOMS
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The Proposed Community Facilities Program

In many downtowns and main street corridors there are underutilized or even vacant buildings that
possess intrinsic cultural, historic, or architectural qualities that make them valuable to the
community. Many of these buildings by extension, have the potential to continue serving the
community as part of an adaptive re-use project. The PA DCED already has a program for
situations such as this called the Anchor Building Program. These anchor buildings, while
valuable, require a large amount of capital to be re-used. Despite the cost to re-habilitate these
anchor buildings it is often less than new construction. When using tax credits, these anchor
buildings can be financially viable in conjunction with grants or low interest loans. Without

financing to overcome the gap between the post-construction appraisal value and costs for
rchabilitation, these buildings will continue to languish.

About PACA

The Performing Arts Collective Alliance (PACA) is a 501 (c)(3) not for profit organization located
in downtown Erie. PACA's mission is to provide affordable regional performance, instructional,
and exhibition space for the use of the widest range of artists and educators in the Erie community.

PACA purchased the 74,000 square foot Mayer Building at 1505 State Street for $230,000 in 2016
after 20 years of the building serving as an artist center under the previous owners. The building
is a five-story steel frame and steel reinforced concrete masonry building with two large retail bays
on the first floor, 30 artist studios on the second and third floors, and empty fourth and fifth floors.

PACA has occupied the building for the last 10 years as a tenant. During that time PACA has
hosted performances at its theater, live music, classes, art exhibitions, and other events.

The PACA/Mayer Building Project

PACA is sceking to incrementally upgrade its building under the requirements of the city’s
property codes to expand the use of the building’s rentable space and continue the building’s
position in the community as an arts incubator, performance space, and retail destination. The
location, while within downtown Erie, does not enjoy the higher sales and appraisal values as other
locations do. While there have been some major developments nearby such as the Mercantile
Building which has created a sound appraisal basis in that area, there is still a gap between money

invested in buildings and their post construction value, This gap is closing, but market intervention
can serve to stimulate more investment.

From the following discussion, information furnished by PACA, and analysis, ECGRA staff
believes that the PACA model has adequate net operating income, a sound debt coverage ratio,

and favorable loan to value ratio. In addition, PACA serves a vital niche in Erie real estate, namely
artist space.



The PACA building has quantifiable architectural, cultural, and historic qualities while
geographically situated at the end or edge of the city’s downtown cultural and entertainment

district and within the planned innovation district. The project is eligible for several tax credits
which could raise significant cash for improvements.

Debt Service
PACA borrowed $275,000 to finance the acquisition of the building and to perform some repairs.

it is estimated (6%, 20/yrs.) that the monthly payment is $1,975/month or 323,700 annually for
principal and interest. Taxes on the building are $6,753 annually which PACA does pay.

Revenue **

e The building has three-four first floor retail spaces which are all rented and yield
$2,000/month total.

s The artist studio spaces on the second and third floors gross $7,500 each month
¢ The total current gross rents are $9,500/month or $114,000 annually.

** (The rents are not yet verified by any financials.)

With the proposed fit out of the fourth floor to accommodate more studios and other rentable space,
the gross potential rent is $3,550/month or $42,600 annually for the 4" floor studio space.

Gross Potential Rent

Current monthly (Floors 1-3) Anticipated with 4" floor upgrades
$9,500 513,050

Operating Expenses and Net Operating income

Plcase see attached proforma for financial forecast

Condition of Building

e The masonry structure is sound although there is no conditions report or environmental
study. A tour of the building did not reveal the presence of asbestos, but there is likely lead
paint on some surfaces. Architect Jeff Kidder informed ECGRA that the building was in
good shape. Architect Adam Trott is working with PACA to design the improvements. Joel
Marz of Roth Marz has been hired to manage construction.

According to Mark Tannenbaum, the roof does have a small leak but water is captured to
prevent damage to the interior. Total roof replacement is estimated at $180,000. McCreary
Roofing estimated the life expectancy of the current roof at a few more years.



The building has two elevators, a freight elevator and a 4 person passenger elevator. The
cost estimate to replace the 4 person elevator is $100,000.

The electricity has been upgraded at a cost of $80,000 and approved by the city of Erie and
Penelec.

The dry fire suppression system recently passed a pressure test.

Many of the windows on the State Street elevation are missing and boarded up. The other
elevations have the original steel windows in various states of disrepair.

The condition of the heating and AC systems are unknown.

The first-floor ADA restrooms are planned at a cost of $25,000.

ECGRA does not know exactly which repairs are necessary for an occupancy permit for
the fourth floor.

Site Issues and Obscrvations

The adjacent property owner, Carpenter Electric, is a hostile neighbor. Gary Carpenter had
to be sucd to maintain an easement for PACA behind the building. Currently the building
has no off-strect parking.

The grading and soil conditions along the railroad tracks and railroad property abutting the
north elevation introduces water against the foundation of the building.

The building on the corer of 16™ and State is blighted and vacant, but was recently sold
to a local investor.

The PACA building falls outside of the Downtown Improvement District and PACA has
been unsuccessful to date in joining the DID and have its services extended to the building.
Althof Plumbing located behind PACA on French Street has discussed the prospect of
leasing land for off street parking.

The former Watson Paper Company complex is vacant and could be converted to parking
for the PACA building.

The Erie Maennerchor Club is a positive for the ncighborhood, although its membership is
declining.

Threats

PACA relies on artists to rent studios for only $250/month. If there were more artisl space

available elscwhere, there might be a negative impact on rental income. Mark Tannenbaum
feels there would not be an adverse effect on his ability to rent space.

The city could requirc off-street parking which would force PACA to petition for a
variance.

On-street parking is metered in that area.



Opportunities

¢ Raven Sound at West 26" and Peach was forced to close its recording studios and musician

space. PACA could rent to these additional tenants.

PACA is located within the proposed Innovation District and could reap a benefit by
renting space or have tenants that provide services to Innovation District members.

Other potential revenue

e The building could have a solar array, telecommunications equipment, or billboards.

e Historic Rehabilitation Tax Credits can provide significant cash for the project. There
would be a six-month delay as the nomination paperwork has to be submitted, reviewed,
and approved by PHMC. For $200,000 in additional work, $80,000 in cash could be
generated by state and federal tax credits.

o Low Income Housing Tax Credits (LIHTC) can be used for artist live/work space.

e New Markets Tax Credits can be used for qualified businesses.

Plans

4" floor plans were furnished by PACA and Adam Trott.
Value to Community

¢ The value to downtown Eric as an attraction, retail space, theater, art exhibit space.

» Potential to raise property values by reducing blight.

» Stimulate cconomic activity by encouraging investment in the neighborhood and possibly
creating more demand for additional housing units.

Financial Feasibility

The PACA building enjoys a low debt service and low taxes. While there are potentially over
$450,000 in future repairs and upgrades, the annual net operating income can cover the debt service
and have a net cash flow of $30,000 - $50,000. Financial assistance in the form or a grant or loan
can reduce the long-term debt service and help create a cash reserve for future repairs.

Qutlook

The Mayer Building, with its warm orange brick, large windows, and active storefronts is an
impressive sight on State Street. The building has a steel frame which allows for open floors and
flexible space — a great combination for adaptive re-use. The location at the “top” of the
entertainment district features several recently rehabilitated properties across the street and next
door at Junior’s comedy club and the Mercantile Building respectively. With the combination of
low debt service, a strong rental history and market, the uniquencss of PACA, and the condition
of the building, public investment in the Mayer Building would pay dividends to the community.

The risk would be categorized as medium for a low interest loan as long as the debt doesn’t exceed
$375,000 - the estimated market value of the building.



To: Chuck Peters
From: Tom Maggio
CC: Perry Wood
Date: August 3, 2017
RE: PACA Project

Overview

The Performing Arts Collective Alliance (PACA) is a 501 (c)(3) not for profit organization located
in downtown Erie. PACA's mission is to provide affordable regional performance, instructional,
and exhibition space for the use of the widest range of artists and educators in the Erie community.

PACA purchased the 74,000-square foot Mayer Building at 1505 State Street for $230,000 in 2016
afier 20 years of the building serving as an artist center under the previous owners. The building
is a five-story steel frame and steel reinforced concrete masonry building with two large retail bays
accommodating 3-4 retail tenants on the first floor, 30 artist studios total on the second and third
floors, a public theater, and empty fourth and fifth floors.

PACA has occupied the building for the last 10 years as a tenant. During that time PACA has
hosted performances at its theater, live music, classes, art exhibitions, and other events.

PACA has a plan to upgrade the utilities, repair the roof, replace the passenger elevator, create
rentable space on the fourth floor of the building, and update the fagade including replacement of
the windows. The projected cost for all of those items is approximately $525,000.

Mark Tannenbaum is the executive dircctor of PACA and the property manager directing the
improvements, maintenance, and leasing.

Elevator

The PACA building has two working elevators. A freight elevator in the rear of the building and
a 4-passenger elevator in the front. The front elevator has recently passed inspection. The current
passenger elevator is a manually operated elevator - not an automatic elevator as the ADA law
requires. PACA architect Adam Trott is of the opinion that a new elevator at this time would not
be required by Building Inspection Underwriters (BIU). According to the Americans with
Disabilities Act Title 11l Technical Assistance Manual there is a concept of “readily achievable”
which would atlow PACA 1o operate without instatling a costly new elevator which is projected
at $100,000 although no estimates are in hand. New construction in the building and other
renovations must be ADA compliant and PACA is following the law. BIU, according to Adam, is

not requiring Mark to upgrade the elevator to be ADA compliant. As PACA begins work on the
5™ fioor buildout in the future, the elevator likely will be upgraded.



bl

Roof

Mark Tannenbaum will schedule a meeting with McCreary Roofing to get a written opinion on
the roof condition and remaining life, as well as a repair of a documented leak and a cost estimate
for replacement. During our last conversation with Mark Tannenbaum from PACA, he indicated
McCreary felt the roof had 2-3 years left before a repair is recommended. Mark will also approach
McCreary about potential donation labor. Mark would like to delay the roof reconstruction until
PACA is able to reduce its debt and accumulate a greater cash reserve.

Tax Credits

Mark needs to completc an Historic Resource Survey (HRS) and send that to Harrisburg. Once
PHMC reviews it, they send it to the National Parks Service (NPS) for approval. The second part
of the tax credit equation is the NPS review of Mark's fagade improvements. NPS will describe
what they require for Mark to pursue the tax credits. 1f Mark decides it is too cost prohibitive, he
can stop there. The HRS is essential for an application for PHMC grant funds, so would not be a
waste of time or money. The state also has tax credits at 25% of allowable costs, but the state only
has so much money for the credits. PACA will need to create an LLC and identify a for-profit
investor to access the tax credits. ECGRA discussed this need with the PACA attorney and he felt

that was not an obstacle. Depending on the date of approval from the NPS, the potential tax credit
equity ranges from $50,000 - $90,000.

Opcrating Expenses

Staff discussed expenses with Mark at length and Mark felt all expenses were accounted for and

were accurate. Operating and replacement reserves (35,000 per year each) are being counted as
expenses on the proforma.

Revenue Projections

Revenue was calculated on an informal rent roll produced by Mark for floors 1-3, and estimates
he generated for the 4" floor buildout. The individual studios range in cost depending on location,
availability of windows, size, etc. so the rent per square foot was not uniform.

Other Grants
PHMC

PHMC has a general historic preservation grant round for construction in March 2018 with awards
announced in June 2018. PACA will apply for $100,000 to address its fagade and windows.

Eric Redevelopment Authority
PACA has a commitment of $40,000 in federal CDBG funds to replace windows.



Cost Projections

With a total mortgage debt of $625,000, which includes replacing the passenger elevator and roof
as well as the buildout of the 4™ floor for tenants, the net annual cash flow is projected at $16,000
with $10,000 inciuded in expenses for replacement and operating reserves total. It is highly

unlikely that PACA would be able to borrow that much money at this juncture considering the
operating income and appraisal value.

If PACA were to delay the replacement of the passenger elevator and roof for three years (2018-
2020} and use ECGRA grant funding to buildout rentable space on its 4® floor, it would have an
annual debt payment of $25,584 for its $275,000 mortgage debt. The PACA annual net cash flow
with rented 4™ floor space would be $53,000 with $10,000 included in the expenses for
replacement and operating reserves. After three years, the projected accumulated cash will be
$164,000 in addition to $15,000 in replacement reserve while the remaining principal balance will
be §250,000. In 2021, PACA would be in better financial position to replace the roof.

If PACA is successful pursuing tax credits, there could be approximately $85,000 in federal tax
credits if $400,000 is spent on additional qualified construction after the tax credits arc sold.



Memo #1, 2014
July 2014

To: Strategic Planning Committee

Re: Pilot Projects
Oraft language for addition to the ECGRA Strategic Plan:

Recommendation: The Board shall have the ability to implement a learning phase that allows
for purposeful testing of an idea.

Checklist:
t The pilot shall relate to the Board passed Strategic Plan
t+ The pilot shall bridge a gap in the current system
+ The pilot shall act as a catalyst for economic and community development
+ The pilot shall relate to the purpases of the Econemic Development Financing Law

A pilot project driven by staff research may be implemented in any of the strategic planning
buckets with the following caveats.
1. Community importance — the project shall be identified as critically important or
significant through a community involvement process.
2. Duration — the project shall be right sized in length accordingly in order to capture
enough information to be relevant.
3. Financial Sponsorship - the appropriate leve! of financial match, minimum of 1-1 shall
be established through project partners.
4. Project Size — select a project that is an appropriate size; large enough to yield

statistically significant results, yet is not so large it outgrows the exemplar’s capacity or
the equivalent benchmarked organization(s).
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VIEWPOINT

OUR View

Innovation
District takes
step forward

The lssue: Downtown hut gets CEQ
Our view: Signs of progress welcome

ou can't visit the Downtown
Etie Innovation District — yet,

But the bold, ambitious movement
to transform Erfe’s downtown and
economy now has a face.

The Downtown Erie Innovation District on
Ftiday announced the hiring of a CEQ, one
of the first tasks called for in the profect’s
three-phase development plan.

Karl H. Sanchack, a Philadelphia native
who attended Penn State Bebirend, will
lead the effort to pair local brainpower with
anchor industries and make Erle a hub for
innovation centered on data science and

ty.

Sanchack’s hiring is a sign that one of the
most consequential initiatives to restore Erie
is on the right track — forward.

The Erie Community Foundation, the Erle
County Gaming Revenue Authority and the
Susan Hirt Hagen Fund for Transforma-
tionat Philanthropy in October antounced
the award of 4 $4 million grant to create an
innovation district in Etle.

Mercyhurst University, home to the Ridge
College of Intelligence Studies and Applied
Sciences; Erle Insurance, the region’s only
Fortune 500 company; UPMC Hamot;
Velocity Network Ine.; and McManis and
Montsalve Associates are the key partners
in the project. They plan to work togethes
on joint programs tied to data science and
cybersecurity to bring new jobs to Erie,
satiract new for-profit businesses, as well as
develop living spaces and amenities sought
by millennials.

In February, an Erfe Insurance board
member and Mercyhurst graduate, Betsy
Hirt Vorscheck, strengthened the prospec-
tive district’s potential with a $1.25 million
investinent to develop and enhance aca-
demie programs at Mercyhurst focused on
the insurance ‘ mdcgpersemrlly.

The programs d help create a pool of
highly trained workert to strengthen the Erle
Insurance workforce, In addition, Mercy-
hutst officials have gaid there is a shortage
of cybersecurity expertise and that demand
for risk managers {s growing, which means
development of this district could make Erie
ahub to meet the need for these skills.

Cities around the world, including indus-
trial gtalwarts like Erfe seeking a niche in
amodern high-tech economy, have culti-
vated new identities in innovation districts
by leveraging unique existing academic
resources and anchor industries to generate
high-tech, family-sustaining jobs and spark
urban renewal,

Sanchack’s resume indicates he may be
well suited to the focus of Erie's innova-
tion district, He has 25 years of experience
in “technology and innovation management
experlence from Silicon Valley through the
aerospace and defense industries,” accord-
ing to www.mmercyhurst.edu, |

The community zhould pay close attention i
to this emerging plan. Executed fully, it car-
ries the potential to transform and impreove |
Erle's downtown core and speed progress on |
the Erie Refocused goal of making Erle again
acommunity of choice, not a place to fle¢ or
disparage with outdated Rust Belt cliches.







HOLY TRINITY ROMAN CATHOLIC CHURCH

2220 Reed &treet = Erie, Dennsylvania 16503-2196 (814) 456-06T1

August 4‘“, 2017
Dear Friends,

We just wanted to take this opportunity to say a since Thank You for your
outstanding support of our upcoming 24™ Annual Zabawa!

Your Sponsorship is greatly appreciated and we hope you get a chance to
come out and enjoy the good times and friendship that really is “Zabawa.”
Remember, we start on Friday August 25th at 5 and go until 10 PM, then on
Saturday from noon until 10PM and finally on Sunday from Noon until 6 PM.

After the Festival, we will forward along a program book for you and some
other items showcasing your sponsorship and support. Until then, we hope you
will be pleased with our results and plan to visit us as we celebrate our Polish
Heritage, our faith and our friendship!

Sincerely,
:_x__z;j<:_{:E {d ¢ ﬁ/«{i

Ray & Edie Luniewski
Festival Chairs






CELEBRATE

THE FLAGSHIP CITY

Dear Sponsor,

Please allow me to extend my personal gratitude for your support of CelebrateErie. An
event of this magnitude would not be possible without your sponsorship. Your
contributions to the event paired with the work of my staff and many volunteers, allows
the City of Erie to bring a family friendly event to the streets of downtown Erie for all to
enjoy.

In recognizing your efforts, | have enclosed passes for seating on the Erie Art Museum
steps for you to enjoy the musical acts performing on the Highmark, Saint Vincent
Hospital, Giant Eagle and Sunflower Club Main Stage. Seating is limited; therefore, we
cannot accommodate additional guests.

You can access the Museum steps from the back entrance (off of Fourth Street) beginning
at 5:30 p.m. on Friday, Saturday & Sunday (Sponsor passes required). Refreshments will
be provided for your enjoyment.

The Museum steps will be open on Thursday evening beginning at 8:30 p.m. (Sponsor
passes required). No food service will be provided Thursday evening.
Again, thank you for your support of CelebrateErie and enjoy the show!

CelebrateErie!

Mayor Joe Sinnott






CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION
SUSPENSION SPONSOR

Thank you for your generous sponsorship of the
2017 VICTORY RIDE
And your support of the people we serve!

e

EHCA

ECGRA
Erie County Gaming Q
Revenue Authority ‘&—‘

IN RECOGNITION OF CHARLES R. WALCZAK
YOUR GENEROSITY EHCA CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

_—
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RESOLUTION NUMBER 10, 2017

Resolution to Enter into agreements with twenty
(20) Erie County Community Assets in the arts, cultural, entertainment, heritage
& recreation-based nonprofit sector

Whereas, the Regional Asset Committee in an open and transparent
process adopted a set of competitive grant guidelines, an application and
eligibility requirements to provide funding support for Erie County’s Arts, Cultural,
Entertainment, Heritage & Recreation-based nonprofits and projects;

Whereas, the Regional Asset Committee with the support of a community
advisory panel reviewed applications and established a funding formula to
support community assets that were then competitively scored;

Whereas, there were thirty (30} applicants for Community Assets funding
and the Board of Directors affirms that twenty (20) applicants have met the
scoring threshold;

Whereas, the twenty (20) nonprofits are identified as Albion Area Fair
Association, AmeriMasala, Community Access Television, Corry Area Historical
Society, Erie Contemporary Ballet Theater, Edinboro Art & Music Festival, Erie
Police Athletic League Downtown, Erie Yesterday, Fort LeBoeuf Historical Society,
Gannon University, Greater Erie Alliance for Equality, Humane Society of NWPA,
Lake Erie Fanfare, Inc., Martin Luther King Center, North East Little League,
Performing Artists Collective Alliance (PACA), Union City School District
Foundation, Waterford Community Fair Association, and Wesleyville Area
Museum of Armed Forces Small Boats (WAM), Woman’s Club of Erie

Whereas, the eligible applicants are awarded grants totaling $150,518 to
the extent outlined in the attached Exhibit “A”;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Erie
County Gaming Revenue Authority, pursuant to the Economic Development
Financing Law and the Erie County Gaming Revenue Authority Bylaws, resolves to



enter into agreements with twenty (20) Erie County Community Assets so they
may flourish, create an economic impact on the region through tourism and
continue to enrich the quality of life for Erie County residents.

On the motion of , seconded by

This resolution was passed on 14" day of September, 2017 by a vote of ___-

ERIE COUNTY GAMING REVENUE AUTHORITY

Chairman, Erie County Gaming Revenue Authority
September 14, 2017

ATTEST:

Secretary, ECGRA
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RESOLUTION NUMBER 11, 2017
Resolution to accept the 2016-17 audited financial statements

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Erie
County Gaming Revenue Authority, pursuant to the Economic Development
Financing Law and the Erie County Gaming Revenue Authority Bylaws, resolves to
accept the 2016-17 audited financial statements into record as outlined in the
attached Exhibit “A”.

On the motion of , seconded by

This resolution was passed on the 14th day of September, 2017 by a vote
of -

ERIE COUNTY GAMING REVENUE AUTHORITY

Chairman, Erie County Gaming Revenue Authority
September 14, 2017

ATTEST:

Secretary, ECGRA
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MaherDuessel

Independent Auditor’s Report

Members of the Erie We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the
County Gaming Erie County Gaming Revenue Authority {(Authority) as of and for
Revenue Authority the year ended March 31, 2017, and the related notes to the
Erie, Pennsylvania financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit invclves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Pursuing the profession while promoting the public good®  Pittsburgh | Harrisburg | Butler
www.md-cpas.com State College | Erie | Lancaster




Board of Directors
Erie County Gaming Revenue Authority
Independent Auditor’s Report

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Authority, as of March 31, 2017, and the changes in its
financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial
statements is not affected by this missing information.

Hater Duessel

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania
August 25, 2017



ERIE COUNTY GAMING REVENUE AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

MARCH 31, 2017

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents S 13,521,348
Prepaid expenses 8,127
Notes receivable, net 1,858,846
Total Assets S 15,388,321

Liabilities and Net Position

Liabilities S -

Net Position:
Restricted - economic development 15,388,321
Total Liabilities and Net Position S 15,388,321

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



ERIE COUNTY GAMING REVENUE AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

Operating Revenues:

Gaming revenue

Contributions

Interest income

Interest income - note receivable

Total revenues

Operating Expenses:

5,412,123
772,069
43,558
76,891

6,304,641

Economic Development
Grants awarded
Provision for uncollectible notes
Employee costs
Professional fees
Office space
Marketing and communications
Office expenses
Data processing
Insurance
General and meeting

Total expenses
Change in Net Position

Net Position:

5,462,062
460,000
203,626

76,926
16,643
26,398
22,757
18,226

9,513
38,842

6,334,993

Beginning of year

End of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

{30,352)

15,418,673

$

15,388,321




ERIE COUNTY GAMING REVENUE AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

General Information

The Erie County Gaming Revenue Authority {Authority} was established February
2008. The Authority was formed pursuant to the provisions of the Economic
Development Financing Law, the Pennsylvania Race Horse Development and Gaming
Act, and the Home Rule Charter of the County of Erie (County). The purpose of the
Authority is to administer municipal grants and otherwise perform the functions of
the County’s Economic Development Authority.

The Authority’s Board consists of nine Board members. Two of the members are ex-
officio, non-voting members, namely, the Chairman of County Council or designee,
and the County Executive or designee. The remaining members consist of one
resident from each of the seven districts within the County who shall be appointed
by the County Executive with the consent of County Council.

The Authority is dependent on gaming revenues generated from the Presque Isle
Downs and Casino. These revenues are passed on to the Authority as restricted
funds. See Note 3 for how monies are distributed.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Authority have been prepared in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles {GAAP) as applied to government units.
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board {(GASB) is the accepted standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles. The more significant of the Authority's accounting policies are described
below.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows,




ERIE COUNTY GAMING REVENUE AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

The Authority is considered a special purpose government operating a single
government program; as such, the government-wide and fund financial statements
have been combined into a single, combining presentation.

Net Position

The Authority only reports restricted net position which represents constraints
placed on net position used through external restrictions, reduced by liabilities
related to those assets. The Authority’s net position is restricted for economic
development grants and loans. Of the total restricted net position, $1.8 million
represents notes receivable (net} from various borrowers as described in Note 7,
and $5.1 million represents grant funding committed via award agreements but not
yet spent.

The Authority’s policy is to use funds in the order of the most restricted to the least
restrictive.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are cash on hand, as well as demand deposits in checking
and savings accounts at a local financial institution.

Notes Receivahle

As described in Note 7, the Authority has issued various economic development
related notes. Notes receivable are written off when they are determined to be
uncollectible. It is the Authority’s policy to provide for future losses on notes based
on an evaluation of the current portfolio, current economic conditions, and such
other factors which, in the Authority’s judgement, may impact collectability for
specific notes. The allowance for uncollectable notes totaled $460,000 as of March
31, 2017 and the provision for uncollectible related to notes receivable for the year
ended March 31, 2017 was 5460,000.

Risk Management

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts (mitigated through
the Pennsylvania Municipal Torts Claim Act), theft of, damage to and destruction of
assets; error and omission, and natural disasters for which the Authority carries




ERIE COUNTY GAMING REVENUE AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

commercial insurance. There have been no significant changes in insurance
coverage since the prior year.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Grants Awarded

In accordance with an agreement dated December 13, 2010 between the Authority
and the eligible governmental entities, which includes Summit Township, the
County, Greene Township, McKean Township, Millcreek Township, and Waterford
Township, the Authority is to first distribute twenty-five percent of all gaming
revenues received to these specific municipalities.

In addition, the Authority distributed at least thirty percent of the gaming revenues
received to the Dedicated Regional Assets (Lead Assets) for the calendar years 2010,
2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014. The funds received during the calendar year are
restricted and distributed based on the settlement agreement. The Authority’s
obligation to make payments on the category of Lead Assets pursuant to the
Settlement Agreement expired in 2014. The Authority has received a Release and
Acknowledge from each Lead Asset indicating that each of the Lead Assets have
acknowledged the Authority's full compliance with this aspect of the Settlement
Agreement.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Authority’s
deposits may not be returned to it. The Authority does not have a policy for
custodial credit risk. As of March 31, 2017, $13,283,113 of the Authority’s bank
balance of $13,533,113 was collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institution and $250,000 was covered by FDIC insurance.




ERIE COUNTY GAMING REVENUE AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

Uninsured and collateral held by the pledging
banks' trust department not in the Authority's
name S 13,283,113

Reconciliation to the Financial Statements

Insured amount S 250,000
Uninsured amount 13,283,113
Less outstanding checks {11,765}

Total cash and cash equivalents
per financial statements $ 13,521,348

Operating Leases

The Authority entered into an agreement with an Organization for rental of office
space, which commenced in April 2015.

The Authority’s base rent will be payable in equal monthly installments of $1,371.
This will be charged monthly. The total expenditures for the year ended March 31,
2017 were $16,643.

Minimum future rentals to be paid as of March 31, 2017 are as follows:

2018 S 16,488

Irrevocable Gifts to Erie Community Foundation

The Authority has entered into irrevocable gift agreements with the Erie Community
Foundation (ECF). These funds are under the control of the ECF and subject to their
policies and, as such, are not recorded on the books of the Authority. The combined
marked value of the funds as reported by the ECF as of March 31, 2017 was $12.8
million. A donor designated fund, called the Lead Asset Endowment Fund was
established to perpetually provide financial assistance to organizations designated




ERIE COUNTY GAMING REVENUE AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

by the settlement dated December 13, 2010 (Erie County Lead Regional Assets).
During 2017, ECGRA received $298,290 in distributions from this fund which are
reported as contributions and the market value as reported by the ECF as of March
31, 2017 was $9,005,941.

The Lead Asset Endowment Fund Il was established for the same purpose as the
Lead Asset Endowment Fund. During 2017, ECGRA contributed $1,000,000 to this
fund which is reported as grants awarded, received $473,779 in distributions from
this fund which are reported as contributions and the market value as reported by
the ECF as of March 31, 2017 was $3,846,542.

Notes Receivable

On September 13, 2012 and August 13, 2013, the Authority entered into loan
agreements with the Enterprise Development Fund of Erie County, Inc. (Fund) for
$500,000 and $800,000, respectively. The purpose of the loan was to provide loans
to various entities in the County area to create and retain jobs. The loan
agreements require interest only payments at a rate of 3% per annum, until
November 2018 and September 2018, respectively, unless the Authority defers the
principal payments. The loan has an outstanding principal balance of $1,300,000 as
of March 31, 2017. During 2017, the Fund requested consideration of forgiveness of
its notes payable which the Authority is currently deliberating.  Additionally, the
Authority was notified in 2016 that an entity related to the Fund, The Greater Erie
Industrial Development Corporation (GEIDC), filed for Chapter 7 bankruptcy. The
Authority has considered the uncertainty surrounding the ultimate collectability of
the loans in its determination of the overall allowance for uncollectible notes. The
Authority staff and Board will continue to monitor this dynamic situation to confirm
ongoing viability of the Fund.

In September 2014, the Authority entered into a loan agreement with the Corry
Industrial Benefit Association (CIBA) for $50,000. The purpose of the loan was to
provide loans to low income individuals for energy efficient improvements for their
homes. Payments are due to the Authority when CIBA has issued a loan to an
individual and CIBA receives principal payments. The loan has an outstanding
principal balance of $18,846 as of March 31, 2017.




ERIE COUNTY GAMING REVENUE AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

In January 2016, the Authority entered into a loan agreement with Bridgeway
Capital for $1,000,000. The purpose of the loan was to create the Erie Growth Fund.
The loan requires/interest only quarterly payments at a rate of 3% per annum. The
entire principal is due January 2026. The loan has an outstanding principal balance
of $1,000,000 as of March 31, 2017.

Simple IRA

In September 2014, the Authority’s SIMPLE IRA Plan (Plan) was established with
Fidelity Advisors to provide retirement benefits to their employees. The provisions
of the Plan were established by the Board of Directors who can also amend the Plan.
Employees can contribute up to the IRS limits and the Authority will match up to 3%
of the employee’s wages. All contributions and earnings are vested immediately.
Contributions made for the year ended March 31, 2017 by employees and the
Authority were $5,479 and 54,864, respectively.

Contingencies

Local share gaming (LSG) funds from the Commonwealth is the Authority’s primary
source of revenue. In September 2016, the Commonwealth Supreme Court declared
the LSG clause of the PA Horse Race and Gaming Act unconstitutional. At that time
the Court granted a stay and gave the Legislature time to amend the Act. Despite a
subsequent extension to that stay, the Legislature was unable to pass amending
legislation. If the legislation is not amended to reinstate the amount of LSG that the
Authority has historically received, then the future viability of the Authority will be in
peril.




